
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




FY 2016 Foreign Pleasure Craft


E# Expires Vessel Name O. N. LOA (ft) Registry area(s) to transit Total Paid


COFR 


required


102509 7/21/2016 PUMULA 743712 105 Cayman Islands SEAK 2,250.00$              


106240 11/27/2016 PENDANA 860553 67 Australlia SEAK, PWS, Kodiak 350.00$                 


109583 3/15/2017 AMARELLA F 919848 79 British All 950.00$                 


109717 3/18/2017 A2 904318 154 Cayman Islands All except Kodiak, Aleutians 3,700.00$              Y


110194 4/4/2017 LAGNIAPPE 70819 119 Marshall Islands SEAK 2,950.00$              


110323 4/6/2017 ARCTIC PRIDE JMP13028 123 Jamaica SEAK 3,150.00$              


110628 4/14/2017 ELISA 70502 127 Marshall Islands SEAK 3,300.00$              Y


110630 4/14/2017 SIN OR SWIM 40416 101 St.Vincent SEAK 2,050.00$              


1 4/22/2017 ICE BEAR 732372 171 British SEAK 5,550.00$              Y


111422 5/3/2017 REBEL 73738208 135 Cayman Islands SEAK 3,750.00$              


174 5/3/2017 CIELO MARE 70708 127 Marshall Islands SEAK 3,350.00$              


111957 5/16/2017 RENT SPENT 70885 96 Marshall Islands SEAK 1,800.00$              


112321 5/24/2017 DOUBLE HAVEN 723572 151 Cayman Islands SEAK 4,550.00$              Y


112703 6/8/2017 VIRGINIA DEL MAR 735459 115 Cayman Islands SEAK 2,700.00$              Y


112792 6/15/2016 KAWIL 80077 100 Marshall Islands SEAK, Glacier Bay 2,000.00$              


IN PROCESS STAMPEDE


IN PROCESS ANNASTAR


Total: 42,400.00$           








 


 


 
 


 


 


Department of Commerce, Community, 
and Economic Development 


 


BOARD OF MARINE PILOTS 


 
P.O. Box 110806 


Juneau, AK 99811-0806 


Main: 907.465.2548 


Fax: 907.465.2974 


DATE:             June 15, 2016  


TO:                   Board of Marine Pilots 


FROM:             Angela G. Birt, Chief Investigator 


 


SUBJECT:        Board of Marine Pilots Report for June 17, 2016 Meeting 
 


The following information was compiled as an investigative report to the Board for the period from 


October 28, 2015 through June 15, 2016.  The Division opened three (3 matters and closed two (2) 


matter. Two (2) matters remain on-going and one of those cases is with licensed Board 


Members for review.   
 


 


OPEN CASES DATE OPENED ALLEGED VIOLATION STATUS 


2016-000652 5/13/2016 Incompetence   Board Member Review 


2016-000838 6/3/2016 Incompetence   Under Inquiry w/ USCG 


 


Open Matters: Total = 2 


 


 


CASE #   OPENED ALLEGED VIOLATION  CLOSURE REASON 


2015-002206   12/29/2015 Marine Pilot Incident Report   Closed - No Action / No Violation 


2016-000676     5/20/2016     Marine Pilot Incident Report    Closed - No Action / No Violation 


 


Closed Matters: Total = 2 
 


 
 
 
 
 


 


 


 


 
 








Board or Commission: _____________________________________________ 


Meeting Date: __________________________ 


Agenda Item # ______         Tab #______  Topic: __________________________________ 


 


Primary Motion 


Motion:  


 


 


 


 
0 


Board Member Motion  2nd  Yes Vote No Vote Abstain Recuse Comments 


         


         


         


         


         


         
 


 


Subsidiary Motion or Amendment 


Motion:  


 


 


 


 
0 


Board Member Motion  2nd  Yes Vote No Vote Abstain Recuse Comments 


         


         


         
         


         
         
 








CALL TO ORDER / ROLL 
 
 


Alaska Board of Marine Pilots 
17 June 2016 


Juneau, AK 
 
 
 
Call to Order 
 
 
 
 
Chair ___________________ called the meeting to order at __________AM / PM 
 
 
 
 
Roll Call 
 
 


BOARD MEMBERS 
 


Mr. Tom Rueter  _____ 
 


Captain David Arzt _____ 
 


Captain Hans Antonsen _____ 
 


Mr. Rick Erickson  _____ 
 


Mr. Andrew Mack  _____ 
 
Mr. Chris Hladick   _____ 


  
Ms. Shirley Marquardt _____ 


 
 





		Alaska Board of Marine Pilots

		Call to Order

		Chair ___________________ called the meeting to order at __________AM / PM



		Roll Call

		BOARD MEMBERS

		Mr. Tom Rueter  _____

		Captain David Arzt _____

		Captain Hans Antonsen _____








 


 


 
 


 


 


 


Department of Commerce, Community, 
and Economic Development 


 


BOARD OF MARINE PILOTS 


 
P.O. Box 110806 


Juneau, AK 99811-0806 


Main: 907.465.2548 


Fax: 907.465.2974 


CONSENT AGENDA 
TELECONFERENCE JUNE 17, 2016 


 
1. The meeting minutes from the following dates have been drafted and circulated to 


board members for review.   
 


Motion:  By adopting this consent agenda, the board moves to adopt the meeting 
minutes as drafted for April 12, 2016, and May 17, 2016. 
 
 


2. The board’s annual report has been drafted and circulated to board members for 
review.  The remaining information will be completed at the end of the fiscal year, June 
30, 2016.   


 
Motion:  By adopting this consent agenda, the board moves to adopt the annual 
report with forthcoming statistical changes in compliance with AS 08.01.070(10). 
 
 


3. The Acting Marine Pilot Coordinator has provided in the board packet the following 
training updates: 


a. Captain Maury’s progress toward completion of his pilotage requirements. 
b. Alaska Marine Pilot Association 1st Quarter Movement Report 


 
No board action required. 
 
 


4. The Acting Marine Pilot Coordinator has provided in the board packet the year-to-date 
actions on Foreign Pleasure Craft Exemptions. 
 
No board action required. 


 








STATE OF ALASKA 
DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE, COMMUNITY, AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 


DIVISION OF CORPORATIONS, BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL LICENSING 
BOARD OF MARINE PILOTS  


 
DRAFT MINUTES OF MEETING 


April 12, 2016 
Juneau, Alaska 


 
These draft minutes have been prepared by the staff of the Division of Corporations, 
Business and Professional Licensing.  They have not been reviewed or approved by the 
Alaska Board of Marine Pilots. 
 
By the authority of AS 08.01.070(2), AS 08.62.030, and in compliance with the provisions of AS 
44.62, Article 6, a meeting of the Alaska Board of Marine Pilots was held on April 12, 2016 in 
Juneau, Alaska. 
 
 
 Call to Order/Roll Call 
 


The meeting was called to order at 8:45 AM by Chairman Chris Hladick.  The 
Marine Pilot Coordinator (MPC) conducted roll call. 


 
 Participating members constituting a quorum were: 
 
 Chris Hladick    - Commissioner, Chair 
 Hans Antonsen  - Pilot Member 


David Arzt   - Pilot Member 
Richard Erickson  - Agent Member 
Tom Rueter   - Agent Member 
Shirley Marquardt    - Public Member 
Andrew Mack    - Public Member 


 
 Staff present:  
 


Crystal Dooley  Marine Pilot Coordinator (MPC) 
Martha Hewlett Administrative Officer II 


 Jun Marquis  Regulations Specialist 
 
 Members of the public present: 


 
 Paul Merrill  Southeast Alaska Pilot Association 
 John Larsen  Southeast Alaska Pilot Association/Marine Safety Task  
    Force 
  Bill Gillespie  Alaska Marine Pilots 







ALASKA BOARD OF MARINE PILOTS 
MINUTES OF MEETINGS 
APRIL 12, 2016 
PAGE 2 of 16 
 


Mike Tibbles  Alaska Steamship Association 
Bob Berto  Cruise Line Agencies of Alaska 
Luke Hasenbank Cruise Line Agencies of Alaska 
Ron Hildebrand Trident Seafoods 
Paul Axelson  North Pacific Maritime Institute- Yacht Services of Alaska 


 Gary Messer  Pacific Reefer Logistics 
 


Jenni Zielinski and Captain Mike O’Hara from Southwest Alaska Pilot 
Association attended via teleconference. 


 
Agenda Item 1 Review and Set Agenda 


 
 Hearing no objections to the set agenda, it was: 


 
  RESOLVED to approve the agenda. 


   
 Declarations of Potential Conflicts of Interest/Recusals 
 
 Board members made no declarations of potential conflicts of interest. 
 


Agenda Item 2 Review/Approve Minutes 
 


On review of the January 28, 2016 meeting minutes, there were no objections to 
the content and the Board corrected some typing errors. 


 
 Agenda Item 3 Public Comment on 12 AAC 56.205(b), 12 AAC 56.029(2) 
   12 AAC 56.990(a)(34) & 12 AAC 56.960(d) 
 


 Captain Michael O’Hara, the president of SWAPA, stated that SWAPA supported 
the wording for 12 AAC 56.960(d) as written.  


 
Mr. Ron Hildebrandt, representing Trident Seafoods, stated that he wasn’t 
speaking to the specific wording of proposed changes to 12 AAC 56.960(d), but 
to the general conditions of the pilots and the Board. Mr. Hildebrandt stated he 
personally saw a lack of transparency if pilots were only required to report 
allisions, collisions, and groundings. He stated the Board had taken up pleasure-
craft reporting to decide what should and should not be reported but the 
information wasn’t flowing to the Board and the public. He stated that the Board’s 
decision to take action seemed to be decided before the Board even got to see the 
Incident Report. He stated he believed the Board should see all incidents even if 
the MPC doesn’t take action, regardless of if there is a pilot onboard. Mr. 
Hildebrandt suggested, in the report, the MPC should list the conditions, state 
whether there was a pilot onboard or not, and then give the findings to the Board 







ALASKA BOARD OF MARINE PILOTS 
MINUTES OF MEETINGS 
APRIL 12, 2016 
PAGE 3 of 16 
 


on a quarterly basis to see if further action was needed. He suggested the MPC 
should provide a summary at each meeting and an annual report.  He stated that 
public had an interest in seeing how many incidents occurred and the names of the 
pilots and yachts did not need to be provided.  


Mr. Mike Tibbles, the executive director for Alaska Steamship Association, 
requested the Board hold the section of 12 AAC 56.960(d) from the regulation 
package and allow the other regulations to move forward. Mr. Tibbles stated the 
motion to adopt that specific regulation was out of order. He stated that the 
minutes had just been corrected accurately to reflect who made and seconded the 
motion, but there was not a vote on that regulation. He stated there was a 
subsequent motion to amend a motion that was on top of a different motion. He 
stated that Mr. Erickson spent time putting a packet with suggested definitions 
together and he deserved a vote on his proposal instead of getting overwritten by 
the Board. Mr. Tibbles stated he thought the current regulations were out of order 
and didn’t follow the correct protocol.  


Mr. Tibbles stated he didn’t think the proposed change to regulations to 12 AAC 
56.960(d) was consistent with direction from the Chair.  He stated the Chair had 
tasked the Board to come up with a definition of marine casualty, and instead the 
Board came up with repealing the word casualty. He stated that he didn’t think 
coming up with a definition was that difficult. He read from a “casualty” 
definition from a Coast Guard document Navigation and Vessel Inspection 
Circular No. 0-15 :  
 


“ [This circular] provide[s] concise policy interpretations to assist 
involved parties in the casualty reporting process. It is impossible to 
outline every scenario that may apply to this subject within the highly 
dynamic and complex maritime environment; however, this circular is 
intended to serve as a common framework of understanding for both 
Coast Guard and maritime industry personnel.” 
 


Mr. Tibbles stated the definition was within the circular, as well as the option of 
having agents and pilots work together to come with a good definition of casualty 
was available, but the pending regulation were going in a different direction. 


 
Mr. Tibbles said he thought the Board was taking language and removing 
requirements for reporting casualties, which he believed was bad policy. He stated 
that he understood that some incidents may have nothing to do with navigation, 







ALASKA BOARD OF MARINE PILOTS 
MINUTES OF MEETINGS 
APRIL 12, 2016 
PAGE 4 of 16 
 


but some may. He stated a thorough analysis was needed on those cases. He stated 
if there was an avoidance maneuver to avoid a vessel that resulted in an injured 
person; the public has the right to know. He stated he believed the proposed 
change to regulations will guarantee many incidents would never be reported, and 
that less reporting is not the right way for Alaska.  


The Chair thanked the public for the comments and reiterated that the regulations 
were not up for action today, 


 Agenda Item 4 Discussion and Possible Change to 12 AAC 56.990(a)(40) Length Overall  
 


The MPC explained that the foreign yacht committee did not meet between Board 
meetings, and that if the Board wanted to open public comment to allow the yacht 
committee to comment, the Board needed to open the public comment period for 
all public, and the yacht committee had to specifically notice their meetings. The 
MPC stated she created a document with other definitions for the yacht committee 
to brainstorm.  


Mr. Erickson stated that last meeting the Board attempted to send this to the yacht 
committee and still believed involving agents and pilots was the best course of 
action.  


Motion: Open public comment on 12 AAC 56.990(a)(40) to allow the Board to 
involve the yacht committee.  
Moved by: Mr. Erickson 
Seconded by: Mr. Rueter 


 
The Chair asked who was on the yacht committee. Mr. Erickson stated that Mr. 
Axelson and Captain Preston were the two Chairs, but they were unable to meet 
due to the Open Meetings Act. The MPC stated the Board had to open the Public 
Comment period and then the committee had to complete other public noticing 
requirements as per state law. 


Captain Antonsen asked how designating something to a subcommittee had any 
advantages under state law, and it was almost better to have public comment at a 
Board meeting. He stated he thought it would be easier to have a teleconference.  


 Mr. Erickson stated he still recommended the yacht committee be involved. 
Captain Antonsen stated that the Board had previously decided they only wanted 
the hull to be part of the definition, not fixtures to the vessel.  


 







ALASKA BOARD OF MARINE PILOTS 
MINUTES OF MEETINGS 
APRIL 12, 2016 
PAGE 5 of 16 
 


Captain Arzt stated that the Board was not requesting the committee to create 
something new. He stated that length overall is by definition, the Board already 
has a proposal, and the Board can’t even act on a definition pulled from the Coast 
Guard. He stated there wasn’t enough agreement between Board members to 
accept the definition. 


Mr. Rueter said that if the Board refers to the registry, some of the registries do 
not reference LOA, they reflect the length of the vessel, which is a different unit 
of measurement. He said the Board could spend a lot of time coming up with 
definitions but length overall does not adhere to the international community and 
if there is a document that reflects length overall, it should be produced. He stated 
the Board should make a pointed request to the yacht committee that no finding is 
unacceptable and the Board needs something to vote on at the next meeting.  


The Chair asked for the problem statement.  


Mr. Erickson answered that about four years ago, the Board identified the means 
of giving a definition of length overall and in the regulations; the registry was 
utilized for LOA. However, in the regulations packet it was used to determine the 
fees and the regulations don’t say anything towards granting exemptions based on 
LOA. There was an assumption from the Board but not in the regulations that the 
ship’s registry would be used to determine LOA and fees. He said that today the 
Board trying to determine whether or not language with the definition of LOA 
from outside the ship’s registry to determine whether or not a yacht would be 
granted an exemption.  


   The Chair asked the Board how often this was an issue. 
 


Mr. Erickson said that the length of the vessel is different than what the registry 
states and that conflicting length information was an issue at least once last 
summer. 


Captain Arzt stated he thought the core of the problem was using the registry 
document to extract LOA. Captain Arzt said, at last meeting, Captain Preston 
suggested the Board ask for the stated LOA and the registry is not relevant in that 
the registries haven’t been giving LOA. He stated the exemption application was 
changed in February, which compounds the issue even more because the Board is 
inferring the documentation of registry gives length overall and it does not. He 
stated he would appreciate more public comment.  Captain Arzt said the Board 
needed to scrub where that number comes from and relay on testament of the 







ALASKA BOARD OF MARINE PILOTS 
MINUTES OF MEETINGS 
APRIL 12, 2016 
PAGE 6 of 16 
 


applicant and the agents, and if there is challenges to the length overall, the Board 
should address it on a case by case. 


Captain Antonsen said that accepting a number on the registry for fees 
complicated the issue for the Board, and it isn’t relevant what the intent was. He 
stated the Board should go back to statute since statute uses LOA and regulations 
are needed to clarify.  


Ms. Marquardt asked if the language was in statute and Mr. Rueter said. Captain 
Antonsen stated that LOA is used in statute but there was no definition of what 
LOA was. Ms. Marquardt stated if the LOA definition was changed to this 
definition, would the registry be needed?  


Mr. Erickson stated the regulation requests the registry and read the application to 
the Board to illustrate that LOA is used to calculate fees. He stated the Board 
could use language “… and if an exemption will be granted”.  


Captain Arzt stated that when the number given on the registry is registered 
length and not LOA, it flaws this approach. He stated the majority of certificates 
post-2012 do not give LOA and give registered length. Captain Arzt said that if 
this document gives an LOA, he’d be onboard, but the Board is trying to make 
language based on information that isn’t given. 


Captain Antonsen said the Board was correct in getting this information 
consistent, and he personally believed length overall should be used for fees and 
exemptions. He stated that he understood Mr. Erickson was proposed fees and 
pilotage based on the length listed on the registry, which would complicate the 
issue. He said that captains would know the length of the vessel, but the length 
listed on the registry was different.  


Ms. Marquart asked the Board what to do if the yacht committee wasn’t interested 
in discussing the issue. 


Mr. Axelson stated the yacht committee had asked for an opportunity to discuss 
and send it back to the Board. He stated he believed the Board was on the right 
track but he thought a registry length for fees and another document for LOA 
would be too confusing. He stated that Captain Preston wasn’t interested in the 
discussion and that the committee got lost in the Open Meeting Act process.  


Captain Antonsen stated that he didn’t find a reason to put the issue before the 
yacht committee.  







ALASKA BOARD OF MARINE PILOTS 
MINUTES OF MEETINGS 
APRIL 12, 2016 
PAGE 7 of 16 
 


Ms. Marquardt stated she thought the Board could solve the issue and asked Mr. 
Erickson what information he thought would come from the meeting.  


Mr. Erickson said that, originally, it was sent to the committee and their hands 
were tied based on the Open Meeting Act process since public comment was 
closed. He stated that the Board should send it back. He said the Board agreed 
that at the last meeting that if it related to any yacht exemption matters the Board 
would not change the process for this summer.  


Captain Arzt asked if the Board was able to accept a proposal for length in 
regulation that does not align in statute. He stated the LOA uses statute, and if the 
registry does not give a LOA number, the Board cannot accept it. 


The Chair asked the MPC for the process. The MPC stated the Board needed to 
make a motion to re-open the public notice period to start the regulation process. 
The MPC stated that lawyers would make sure the regulation was aligned with 
statute during the 13-step regulation process and the Board would not be able to 
pass the regulation. 


The MPC confirmed the public comment period for this specific regulation ended 
on April 29, but there was not an open public comment period for the LOA 
regulations now. 


Mr. Rueter stated, in statute, there is the LOA of a pleasure-craft of foreign 
registry. He asked if a vessel was more than 65-ft overall was a question for the 
port state where the vessel was flagged and not the registry document. He stated 
the statutes refer to a vessel that isn’t US-flagged, not for specific information 
from the port state, so the statute is really referring to a non-US flagged vessel.  


Mr. Mack asked if the Board sent it back to the yacht committee, it would trigger 
public comment. The MPC requested to research if the Board needed to send out 
a specific regulation to discuss. The Chair recessed the Board at 0940. 


At 0953, the Board was called back in order. 


The Chair asked the Board if they had any suggested language to send out for 
public comment. Captain Antonsen stated the Board did, but the definition wasn’t 
complete if they solve the registry issue. The Chair requested a motion to re-open 
public comment so the yacht committee can meet.  The MPC confirmed that the 
Board was required to send out a proposed regulation or topic for the public to 
discuss. 







ALASKA BOARD OF MARINE PILOTS 
MINUTES OF MEETINGS 
APRIL 12, 2016 
PAGE 8 of 16 
 


The Regulations Specialist, Mr. Jun Marquis, representing the Division, joined the 
meeting. Mr. Marquis stated the public comment period on the previous LOA 
project closed January 28, 2016. He asked if the Board would like to open the 
public comment on that topic at today’s meeting. He recommended re-noticing 
the project again to extend public testimony period. He stated the Board could not 
take public comment on LOA issues today because it was not public noticed. 


Captain Antonsen asked how broad the topic needed to address the whole section 
for public comment in case the Board wanted to change other sections of the 
regulation too. Mr. Marquis stated he could make notes broader so the Board 
could take bigger changes to regulation.  


Mr. Mack confirmed this motion would allow both the public and the yacht 
committee to make a comment. Mr. Erickson confirmed that was the case, and his 
goal was to get the pilots and agents together to discuss. The Chair confirmed 
with the MPC that a second motion would be needed to send the regulation to the 
yacht committee within the public comment period. The Chair asked Mr. Marquis 
how long the Board could open the public notice period. Mr. Marquis stated he 
was required to public notice regulations no less than 30 days, but could do 
longer. 


Mr. Erickson amended his motion to read: 


Motion: Move to open public comment to discuss proposed changes to regulation 
12 AAC 56.990(a)(40) “’Length Overall’ means the horizontal distance between 
the forward-most and the after-most points on the hull.” to public comment. 
Moved by: Mr. Erickson 
Second: Mr. Reuter 
 
The Board APPROVED the motion 7 – 0. 


The Chair asked for a second motion to send the proposed change to regulation to 
the yacht committee. Mr. Mack stated that he was concerned with sending to the 
yacht committee in that the expertise was within the table. Captain Antonsen 
asked if the yacht committee would need to public notice their meeting and the 
Chair said they did. The Chair stated the yacht committee did not preclude anyone 
from commenting. Mr. Mack asked for the benefit of sending it to the committee 
and asked for clarification on that process. Mr. Erickson stated it was an 
important venue for pilots and agents to get together. Captain Arzt stated the 
yacht committee would consolidate viewpoints between industry and the pilots, 
and that consolidation would be more effective to the Board.  







ALASKA BOARD OF MARINE PILOTS 
MINUTES OF MEETINGS 
APRIL 12, 2016 
PAGE 9 of 16 
 


Motion: send 12 AAC 56.990(a)(40)to the yacht committee for public comment 
within the public comment period. 
Moved by: Mr. Erickson 
Seconded by: Ms. Marquardt 


 
The Chair called for a vote. Motion was APPOVED 5-1 by the Board. Dissenting 
vote was Captain Antonsen.  


Mr. Rueter asked if the supplemental comment period had been established. Mr. 
Marquis stated that the standard notice was 30 days, but it was up to the Board. 
The Chair asked if the yacht committee could meet in that period. Mr. Axelson 
stated the yacht committee could meet before them. Mr. Rueter stated they wanted 
public comment over before the next meeting so the Board could take action at 
the Fall meeting. Mr. Marquis stated the Board could request only written 
testimony or only oral comment, but the Board did not have to wait until their 
next face-to-face comment. Captain Antonsen asked how fast the Division could 
put something out for public comment. Mr. Marquis stated that he could release 
the information tomorrow, but the public comment period was dependent on what 
the paper published it. He stated he needed to know when the Board was having 
their next meeting to advertise the information for the teleconference.  Mr. 
Erickson asked if once a definition of LOA was determined, when would the 
Board take time to clean up 12 AAC 56.115(a)(4). Mr. Marquis stated that there 
might need to be a second regulation project to clean up those regulations.  


The Board recessed at 10:05am. 


The Board came to order at 10:00am. 


The Chair stated that Mr. Marquis had confirmed there was no issue taking up 
other sections of the regulations while the Board was fixing a specific section.  


Agenda Item 5 Association Reports  
  


a) SEAPA: Captain Paul Merrill, President of SEAPA, stated SEAPA was 
gearing up for the summer with 47 pilots and a one new deputy after this meeting. 
He stated there were two retirements over the winter. He stated that some SEAPA 
members had attended the Marine Safety Task Force meeting yesterday and 
worked with the agents on scheduling. Captain Antonsen asked about trainees. 
Captain Merrill stated there were 5 trainees in the pipeline. Captain Merrill 
confirmed to Captain Arzt that “trainee” and “apprentice” were used 
interchangeably. The Chair asked if each organization had different training 







ALASKA BOARD OF MARINE PILOTS 
MINUTES OF MEETINGS 
APRIL 12, 2016 
PAGE 10 of 16 
 


standards. Captain Arzt stated there were different move requirements in each 
region. 


b)  SWAPA: Ms. Zielinski, representing SWAPA, stated that SWAPA had 14 
full pilots, two Deputy pilots with one at 90KGT and one at 60KGT, and five 
people in the training program. She stated there was one should be taking the 
Local Knowledge Exam within a month to become a Deputy pilot and there were 
two trainees on the Deputy track and one trainee on the apprentice track. 


c)  AMP: Captain Bill Gillespie, representing AMP, stated they had nine 
pilots were determining how many pilots were needed for the Quintillion Project, 
the fiber-optic cable project in the Arctic. Captain Gillespie stated pilots would be 
required in Nome, Kotzebue, Wainwright, Barrow, and Prudhoe Bay. He stated 
there would be three ships moving around in pilotage waters and the organization 
had been in touch with them the last month. Captain Gillespie stated they were in 
contact with ALAMAR concerning expedition ships. He said it’s a challenge 
getting Russian VISAs and the paperwork is extremely complicated. Captain 
Gillespie explained that an expedition ship was approximately 300-ft long with 
100 people onboard, and the ships went bird-watching, into World War II 
historical areas, and required zodiacs to transport people onboard. He stated AMP 
had one trainee, Derrick Nystrom, and finished Akutan transits the other day. 
Captain Gillespie stated that Captain Christy had completed manned model 
training in Louisiana, he was scheduled for an emergency ship handling class, and 
Captain Arzt had a manned model ship handling class coming up too.  


Ms. Marquardt asked what manned model training was. Captain Gillespie stated it 
was the most realistic, accurate reproduction of a ship moving around where the 
ship could be banged up. He stated the training was very expensive, but 
comprehensive in that pilots could complete tasks in five days they wouldn’t see 
in years on a ship. Captain Gillespie stated that AMP had teamed up with the 
Ports and Waterways Committee of Unalaska to have a more effective waterways 
and safety commitment. He stated that Unalaska was a limited resource port and 
mostly fishing boats and Shell had stretched their limits. He stated that, with help 
from Captain Ed Page, AMP teamed up with the Department of Ports and 
Waterways to create a Waterways Safety Committee. He stated AMP is also a 
member of the Arctic Waters Safety Committee; and even though it hasn’t formed 
yet, there’s been a lot of interest in that committee and how it’s going to work. 
The Chair asked who was organizing the committee and Captain Gillespie said he 
thought the Coast Guard had started it and was continuing to run it. Mr. Tibbles 
stated that there were five subsistence groups and every industry was involved 







ALASKA BOARD OF MARINE PILOTS 
MINUTES OF MEETINGS 
APRIL 12, 2016 
PAGE 11 of 16 
 


and the last meeting was in Juneau. Mr. Tibbles stated this was a different group 
than the one meeting in Nome, and there was White House congressional 
attendance.  


Captain Gillespie stated that AMP meet with NOAA in Anchorage to discuss 
prioritizing charting requirements. He stated there were still places in the Arctic 
that weren’t surveyed and the template NOAA uses to prioritize charting 
requirements doesn’t fit with AMP’s traffic. He stated he was looking forward to 
meeting in Dutch Harbor to discuss annual emergency tow training.  


The Chair asked if the Coast Guard had finished their fairways studies on the 
Bering Strait. Captain Gillespie stated that it had been finished but hadn’t 
appeared on the charts yet. He stated that AMP would be creating new rate 
contracts. The Chair asked about Marine Protected Areas in that 15% of the ocean 
would be designated as an MPA by the Obama Administration. Captain Gillespie 
stated that expedition cruises need flexibility and the Chair stated that Captain 
Page from Marine Exchange discussed using AIS as roving hot spots for whale 
avoidance.  


Mr. Erickson asked Captain Gillespie if AMP was involved in the Crystal 
Serenity cruises exercise tomorrow. Captain Gillespie said no. Mr. Reuters stated 
it was a mass rescue tabletop drill. He stated it was originated by the Coast Guard 
to work with Transport Canada and how to get cities and boroughs to respond to a 
mass rescue. Mr. Erickson stated it was a two day event.  


Mr. Rueter asked if Captain Gillespie thought AMP had enough trainees for the 
foreseeable future and Captain Gillespie said that they did. 


Agenda Item 6 MSTF Report  


Captain Larsen reported he would discuss the agenda of the previous day’s 
meeting with the Board. He stated the Glacier Bay observer program is an 
ongoing whale and wildlife program where people stand on the bow the whole 
time to boat is in Glacier Bay, sighting and mapping for the whole Southeast 
Alaska with humpback whales and orcas. He stated here is now a cell phone ap 
for uploading information about real time white sightings, however there’s a 
conflict with bridge cell phone protocol.  Captain Larsen stated the MSTF 
discussed whale collision avoidance in that a couple pilots have gone to Seward in 
the simulation program. He said the harbor seal viewing guidelines for glacier 
areas is the same as last year, and to avoid areas where seal are pupping in 
specific months. Captain Larsen stated NOAA is now monitoring heartrate for 







ALASKA BOARD OF MARINE PILOTS 
MINUTES OF MEETINGS 
APRIL 12, 2016 
PAGE 12 of 16 
 


seals to tell when they’re stressed. He stated the new Hoonah deep water berth is 
ready to go and the cruise line agents suggest a second vessel can be brought in to 
anchor. Captain Larsen reported that a Juneau dock program update was given by 
the harbormaster and harbor engineer, and the dock should be operational in May, 
even though arrival and departure at the Franklin Dock could be more logistically 
difficult and ships would work together to reduce overtaking schedules so vessels 
arrive in the proper order to their next port.  


Captain Larsen said the SEAPA introduced an alternative route to reduce traffic 
density in lower Lynn Canal to Mr. Kirby Day, Mr. Day accepted it, and the 
Northwest Cruiseship meeting will see it on April 19. He stated the Bridge team 
pilot relationship is an evolving atmosphere, and the current atmosphere between 
the pilot and the bridge team is going really well and he looks forward to more 
discussion in how the pilot fits with the bridge team.  Captain Larsen said that 
safe anchoring is an issue in Hawk Inlet if there’s a heavy ship at the dock and the 
current anchorage isn’t sufficient. He stated the Voluntary Waterway Guide was 
reviewed with minor edits and a new version will be issued by May 1.  


Captain Antonsen asked Captain Larsen if he knew the heading if the Icy Strait 
Point dock and he did not. 


 Agenda Item 7 Change to 12 AAC 56.120(a)(50) Pilot Stations or Pickup Points 
 


 The MPC stated that the United Kingdom Hydrographic Office, the British 
version of NOAA, had discovered a typo in the location of the pilot station in 
Kiska. The MPC stated the Board had to follow the standard regulations process 
to fix the typo.  


 
 Motion: Change the language in 12 AAC 56.120(a)(50) “Kiska Harbor – 1.0 mile 


270° true from Little Kiska Head; approximately position 51°58.5’ north latitude, 
177°36.5’ west longitude” to “Kiska Harbor – 1.0 mile 270° true from Little 
Kiska Head; approximately position 52°58.5’ north latitude, 177°36.5’ east 
longitude”. 


 Moved by: Mr. Erickson 
   Seconded by:  Mr. Rueter 
  
   The Board APPROVED the motion 7 -0.  


 
 Agenda Item 8 Approval of agent navigation packet as per Sec. 08.62.180(c) 


 
  The MPC stated that the Board was directed via statute to approve the navigation 


packet. The Chair asked if there were any changes from last year and Mr. 
Axelson, the representative of North Pacific Maritime, said there were not. Mr. 







ALASKA BOARD OF MARINE PILOTS 
MINUTES OF MEETINGS 
APRIL 12, 2016 
PAGE 13 of 16 
 


Axelson stated that the navigation packet was created by the yacht committee 
when Captain Winters was the co-chair, and in the past the agents had given the 
navigation packet to yachts upon their arrival. Mr. Axelson stated that pilots that 
are onboard yachts give similar briefs and the briefs should be aligned.  


 
  Motion: The Board shall accept the navigation packet as submitted. 
  Moved by: Mr. Rueter  
  Seconded by: Ms. Marquardt  
 
  The Chair asked for discussion. Captain Antonsen stated he had not had time to 


review the document. Captain Arzt asked when the document was last reviewed 
and Mr. Axelson stated he thought probably during Captain Winter’s tenure. 
Captain Antonsen requested the Board to wait until the next teleconference to 
officially approve the information to give more time to review. He stated the 
agents should keep issuing the information unless the Board directs otherwise.  


 
  The Chair requested a vote on the motion. The motion failed 5 -1 with Mr. Rueter 


the dissenting vote. The Chair stated that approving the agent packet would be on 
the next teleconference Board meeting.     


 
Agenda Item 9  Board Revenue and Expense Report  
 


Ms. Martha Hewlett, Administrative Office II for the Division, addressed the 
Board. She stated the Board had received $10, 448.00 in revenue and that over 
$3,000.00 was from foreign pleasure-craft and the other was from pilot fees. She 
stated the Board had spent $30, 509.00 in Personal Services, which corresponded 
to the 2000 object codes. She stated that Personal Services were broken into the 
MPC’s time, the Regulation Specialist’s time, and if investigators outside of the 
MPC were spending time on her project. Ms. Hewlett stated the Board had spent 
$2,987.00 on travel, which corresponded to other 2000 object codes. She stated 
the last line item was contractual expenses, in which the Board spent $2,175.00 on 
advertising for meetings and regulation changes, rentals and leases, and stipends 
if a Board member was attending a meeting within their community. Ms. Hewlett 
asked for questions and none.  
 
Ms. Hewlett stated the Director would start analyzing fees for the next renewal 
cycle on May 1 to see if fees needed to be adjusted. Captain Antonsen asked if 
fees would drop and Ms. Hewlett said there would be an in depth analysis and the 
MPC would be contacted if there were any questions. She stated the goal was that 
revenue would cover the two-year licensing cycle.  
 


Agenda Item 10  Possible creation of casualty reporting requirements of foreign  
    pleasure-craft  


 







ALASKA BOARD OF MARINE PILOTS 
MINUTES OF MEETINGS 
APRIL 12, 2016 
PAGE 14 of 16 
 


Ms. Marquardt and Captain Antonsen stated there was nothing to discuss at the 
time. The Board declined to discuss the subject. 
 


Agenda Item 11  Discussion of proposed regulation change to “day” as per  
    12 AAC 56.012(c)(1)  


 
Mr. Rueter stated that he had researched the CFR reference to “calendar year” and 
noted that there aren’t correct CFR references throughout the regulation.  


 
Captain Antonsen stated that statutes refer to 360 days and 8 hours in a day for 
submitting time in licensing, and while he could not keep track of all the CFR’s, 
the big picture is the narrow area in licensing in the regulations and statutes where 
a year is supposed to be different than 365 days and a day is different than 24 
hours.  


 
Mr. Rueter stated he agreed, and suggested the MPC research all CFR references 
to find errors. The Chair suggested the MPC have the information for the next 
Board meeting for the Board to take action.  
 


Agenda Item 12  MPC/Investigator Report 
 


The MPC stated she had no open investigations and received no intakes since the 
last meeting. She stated that the exemption process was working well and 
recognized North Pacific Maritime for their effort and working as a finely tuned 
machine. The MPC stated that last year the Board received 22 exemptions and she 
currently has four or five exemptions on her desk. She stated that she was 
coordinating with DEC and NOAA for wildlife information that might be helpful 
for the agent navigation packet, but no mandatory reporting requirements. She 
stated NOAA was creating a one page graphic with information for someone not 
familiar with Alaska’s marine life.  The Chair asked if yachts received the 
navigation packet, and the MPC confirmed that the information will be in the 
packet. Mr. Rueter stated the agents will incorporation anything other agencies 
wanted to provide. He said he wasn’t sure if it was the MPC’s position to add 
things to the packet. The MPC stated she has asked the agent’s permission. 
Captain Arzt stated that if this Board was approving the navigation packet but 
now submitting information for the agent’s approval to be added to the packet, 
there may be a conflict. Mr. Axelson stated the regulations/statutes are clear that 
the Board can give information to the agents for the navigation packet, and if the 
agents chose not to put it in the navigation packet, it would be breaking the law. 
The Chair asked if people visiting Glacier Bay had requirements to learn specific 
information. Mr. Erickson stated people needed a permit to enter Glacier Bay. 
Captain Antonsen said they had multiple meetings with Park Service personnel.  
 







ALASKA BOARD OF MARINE PILOTS 
MINUTES OF MEETINGS 
APRIL 12, 2016 
PAGE 15 of 16 
 


Captain Antonsen asked if the Board should be reviewing the exemption form. 
Captain Antonsen stated the goal was to keep ambiguities out. The MPC stated 
the form was owned by the Division, so the MPC could send a form out for Board 
approval but the Division had the final stay. The Chair requested the MPC 
provide the application the next time the Board discussed the issue.  
 
Mr. Mack asked if the Board if vessels entering Glacier Bay needed Letters of 
Authorizations, or permits from NMFS or NOAA. Mr. Erickson stated the vessels 
enter into a contract with the Park Service to enter Glacier Bay, and that varies 
from operator to operator. Mr. Erickson stated vessels may need permits for 
landings. Mr. Mack stated the Arctic used Letters of Authorization and he was 
nervous about spreading the information around without an authorized source.  
 
Mr. Rueter stated the Board was discussing the yacht navigation packet vs. 
commercial operations in Glacier Bay. It was stated that yachts do have to apply 
for a permit to enter Glacier Bay, but it’s not a contractual agreement. Captain 
Antonsen stated the Board is not generating the navigation packet, but giving 
approval to it. It was confirmed the Board would “revise and approve” the packet, 
but not generated, but the yacht committee does not generate the navigation 
packet.  
 
Captain Arzt stated it was collaboration between different agencies to create 
advisory information, subject to Board approval. Captain Erickson stated that a 
wealth of information is given to bigger vessels via thumb drive. The Chair asked 
if there was a disclaimer and Mr. Erickson said there was not because it was all 
public information. Captain Antonsen said there was nothing in statute that 
requires anything specific.  


 
The Board recessed at 11:15am. 
 
The Board came to order at 11:30am. 
 


Agenda Item 13  Correspondence  
 


The Chair directed the Board to the correspondence section containing letters 
from Captain O’Hara to the Board. The Chair asked the Board if they had any 
questions. There were none. 


The Board recessed at 11:35am. 


The Board came back to order at 11:45am. 


Agenda Item 14  Executive Session   
 







ALASKA BOARD OF MARINE PILOTS 
MINUTES OF MEETINGS 
APRIL 12, 2016 
PAGE 16 of 16 
 


The Board entered Executive Session under AS 44.62.310 Open Meetings Act for 
the purpose of subject’s undue prejudice, reputation, and character of any persons 
provided the person may request a public discussion. 


 
  The Board came out of executive session at 12:15pm. 
 


Motion: Captain Palmer has satisfied all conditions and requirements to become a 
Deputy Pilot for 25,000 GT. 
Moved By: Captain Antonsen 
Seconded By: Mr. Erickson 
 
The Board APPROVED the proposed the endorsement. 


 
Agenda Item 15   Other Business: Next meeting 
 


The Board agreed the next tentative in-person meeting would be October 12, 2016 
in Anchorage and January 26, 2017 in Anchorage.  


 
The Board RESOLVED to adjourn at 1:00pm. 


 
 


Respectfully submitted:     _______________________  


   Crystal Dooley 


   Marine Pilot Coordinator 


 


     ___________________________ 


     Chris Hladick 


     Chairman 








STATE OF ALASKA 
DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE, COMMUNITY, AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 


DIVISION OF CORPORATIONS, BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL LICENSING 
BOARD OF MARINE PILOTS  


 
DRAFT MINUTES OF MEETING 


May 17, 2016 
Teleconference originating at the State Office Building 


333 Willoughby Avenue 
9th Floor Conference Room B-East 


Juneau, Alaska 
 
These draft minutes have been prepared by the staff of the Division of Corporations, 
Business and Professional Licensing.  They have not been reviewed or approved by the 
Alaska Board of Marine Pilots. 
 
By the authority of AS 08.01.070(2), AS 08.62.030, and in compliance with the provisions of AS 
44.62, Article 6, a meeting of the Alaska Board of Marine Pilots was held on May 17, 2016 in 
via teleconference. 
 
May 17, 2016 
 
 Call to Order/Roll Call 
 


The meeting was called to order at 10:00 AM by Chairman Chris Hladick.  The 
Marine Pilot Coordinator (MPC) conducted roll call. 


 
 Members present constituting a quorum were: 


 
Hans Antonsen  - Pilot Member 
David Arzt   - Pilot Member 
Andrew Mack   - Public Member 
Shirley Marquardt  - Public Member 
Tom Rueter   - Agent Member 
Rick Erickson   - Agent Member 
Chris Hladick, Chair  - Commissioner’s Designee 


 
 Staff present:  
 


Crystal Dooley  Marine Pilot Coordinator (MPC) 
 


Agenda Item 1 Review and Set Agenda 
 


 Hearing no objections to the set agenda, it was: 
 







ALASKA BOARD OF MARINE PILOTS 
MINUTES OF MEETINGS 
MAY 17, 2016 
PAGE 2 
 


  RESOLVED to approve the agenda. 
 
Agenda Item 2  Review/Approve Minutes for April 12, 2016 
    


The MPC confirmed that the tentative date for the next meetings were October 12 
and the January 26. Mr. Erickson stated that Mr. Tibbles had commented at the 
last meeting there was a no vote on a specific topic, but the MPC had recorded 
there was a vote. Since the Board had no clear recollection, the MPC stated she 
would listen to the recording and report back. The Chair called for a vote on the 
approval of the minutes: 


  
  Motion: Approve minutes for April 12, 2016 
 
  Moved by: Mr. Erickson 
  Second: Captain Arzt 
 


The Chair called for the vote and there were no affirmative votes. The Chair 
stated the Board would vote on the minutes at the next meeting. 


 
Agenda Item 3  Adoption of Regulations: 12 AAC 56.205(b), 12 AAC 56.029(2),  
  12 AAC 56.990(a)(34) & 12 AAC 56.960(d) 
   
  12 AAC 56.205(b) 


Motion: Accept proposed change to regulation 12 AAC 56.205(b) (1): 
“ (1)  in Akutan of the Western Alaska Region, an agent, owner, or master of a  


vessel shall inform the appropriate pilot organization of a vessel 
movement at least 48 hours before the movement in order to provide 
sufficient time for a pilot to arrive at the vessel by the available means of 
transportation. A pilot will be considered unavailable for service only if 
the 48-hour notice required by this subsection is given and a pilot does not 
show up at the vessel to render service. If the agent, owner, or master of a 
vessel requests a pilot, and the pilot attempts to reach the vessel but cannot 
do so within 48 hours due to factors beyond the pilot's control, and the 
vessel then leaves without the pilot, the vessel or the vessel's owner may 
be charged for the actual expenses incurred by the pilot in attempting to 
reach the vessel. If the 48-hour notice is not given as required by this 
subsection and a pilot is not able to reach the vessel to render pilot 
services, the vessel or the vessel's owner may be charged for the 
transportation costs incurred by the pilot in attempting to reach the vessel 
and the pilotage charge and all other charges that would have been 
incurred had the pilot reached the vessel and provided pilotage services;  


(2)  in the Pribilof Islands, Port Clarence, and the Kuskokwim Bay Region of 
the Western Alaska Region, an agent, owner, or master of a vessel shall 
inform the appropriate pilot organization of a vessel movement at least 96 







ALASKA BOARD OF MARINE PILOTS 
MINUTES OF MEETINGS 
MAY 17, 2016 
PAGE 3 
 


hours before the movement in order to provide sufficient time for a pilot to 
arrive at the vessel by the available means of transportation. A pilot will 
be considered unavailable for service only if the 96-hour notice required 
by this subsection is given and a pilot does not show up at the vessel to 
render service. If the agent, owner, or master of a vessel requests a pilot, 
and the pilot attempts to reach the vessel but cannot do so within 96 hours 
due to factors beyond the pilot's control, and the vessel then leaves without 
the pilot, the vessel or the vessel's owner may be charged for the actual 
expenses incurred by the pilot in attempting to reach the vessel. If the 96-
hour notice is not given as required by this subsection and a pilot is not 
able to reach the vessel to render pilot services, the vessel or the vessel's 
owner may be charged for the transportation costs incurred by the pilot in 
attempting to reach the vessel and the pilotage charge and all other charges 
that would have been incurred had the pilot reached the vessel and 
provided pilotage services; 


(3)  in all other locations of the Western Alaska Region, an agent, owner, or  
master of a vessel shall inform the appropriate pilot organization of a 
vessel movement at least 72 hours before the movement in order to 
provide sufficient time for a pilot to arrive at the vessel by the available 
means of transportation. A pilot will be considered unavailable for service 
only if the 72-hour notice required by this subsection is given and a pilot 
does not show up at the vessel to render service. If the agent, owner, or 
master of a vessel requests a pilot, and the pilot attempts to reach the 
vessel but cannot do so within 72 hours due to factors beyond the pilot's 
control, and the vessel then leaves without the pilot, the vessel or the 
vessel's owner may be charged for the actual expenses incurred by the 
pilot in attempting to reach the vessel. If the 72-hour notice is not given as 
required by this subsection and a pilot is not able to reach the vessel to 
render pilot services, the vessel or the vessel's owner may be charged for 
the transportation costs incurred by the pilot in attempting to reach the 
vessel and the pilotage charge and all other charges that would have been 
incurred had the pilot reached the vessel and provided pilotage services.” 


 
   Moved by: Captain Antonsen: 
   Second: Mr. Rueter 
 


   The Chair requested a roll call vote: 
    Captain Arzt - Yes 
    Captain Antonsen - Yes 
    Mr. Erickson: - Yes 
    Mr. Mack - Yes 
    Mr. Rueter -  Yes 
    Ms. Marquardt -  Yes 
    Mr. Hladick - Yes 







ALASKA BOARD OF MARINE PILOTS 
MINUTES OF MEETINGS 
MAY 17, 2016 
PAGE 4 
 


 
 Motion passed 7 -0.  


.  
12 AAC 56.029(2) 
Motion: Accept proposed change to regulation 12 AAC 56.029(2): 
“(2) show that the applicant has held a valid deputy marine pilot license in Alaska  
for a minimum of three years while remaining eligible for license renewal during 
this period of service without use of the familiarization trips under AS 08.62.120” 
 
Moved by: Ms. Marquardt 
Second: Mr. Rueter: 
 
The Chair requested a roll call vote: 
 Captain Arzt - Yes 
 Captain Antonsen - Yes 
 Mr. Erickson - Yes 
 Mr. Mack - Yes 
 Mr. Rueter - Yes 
 Ms. Marquardt - Yes 
 Mr. Hladick - Yes 


 
Motion passed 7 -0.  
 
12 AAC 56.990(a) (34) 
Motion: Accept proposed change to regulation 12 AAC 56.990(a) (34): 
“(34) "Year" as used in AS 08.62.093(b) means the same as year in 46 C.F.R.  
10.103, elsewhere, year means 365 days” 
 
Moved by: Captain Antonsen 
Second: Captain Arzt 
 
The Chair asked for discussion. The Chair confirmed with the MPC that the only 
change to the regulation was adding “elsewhere, year means 365 days”.  Captain 
Antonsen stated he was concerned about unintended consequence in other 
paragraphs detailing required sea time and sea service instead of years. He 
recommended waiting for feedback from the pilot associates before future clean-
up efforts.  


Mr. Rueter stated he believed the 46 CFR 10.103 does not refer to any definition, 
and the correct citation is 46CFR 10.107. Captain Antonsen asked if the Board 
would be looking at the citations later and the MPC stated she was hoping to have 
a project completed by the October meeting.   







ALASKA BOARD OF MARINE PILOTS 
MINUTES OF MEETINGS 
MAY 17, 2016 
PAGE 5 
 


Captain Antonsen asked if the Board could table the issue until the October 
meeting. Mr. Reuter asked if the Board could amend the definition or use the 
MPC to research the issue. The Chair asked the MPC if amending the regulation 
would require re-starting the public notice process. Captain Antonsen stated, at 
the previous meeting, Mr. Marquis stated that a public notice can be broad or 
narrow, and that he thought the Board could amend it at the meeting and move on. 
The MPC stated that the regulation language could be changed provided the broad 
principle wasn’t changed. The Chair recommended the Board amended it. 


Mr. Rueter stated the definition referred to in this section be referenced as 46 CFR 
10.107.  


Captain Antonsen requested a friendly amendment to add language “subparagraph 
1 – 4”, so the regulation change only referred to the sea service paragraph. 
Captain Antonsen that nothing was changing and it could prevent future conflict. 
Mr. Reuter stated that “calendar” had been struck. Mr. Rueter stated he would 
accept the amendment. Captain Antonsen stated he would second the amendment: 


Motion: Accept the amended proposed change to regulation 12 AAC 
56.990(a)(34):  
(34) “Year as used in AS 08.62.093(b) (1-4) means the same as year in 46 CFR 
10.107. Elsewhere, year means 365 days.”  
 
Moved by: Mr. Rueter 
Second: Captain Antonsen 


 
The Chair requested a roll call vote: 
 Captain Arzt - Yes 
 Captain Antonsen - Yes 
 Mr. Erickson - Yes 
 Mr. Mack - Yes 
 Mr. Rueter - Yes 
 Ms. Marquardt - Yes 
 Mr. Hladick -   Yes 
 
Motion passed 7 -0.  
 
Motion: Accept to proposed change to regulation 12 AAC 56.990(a) (34): 
“Year as used in AS 08.62.093(b) (1-4) means the same as year in 46 CFR 
10.107. Elsewhere, year means 365 days.  


 
The Chair requested a roll call vote: 
 Captain Arzt - Yes 







ALASKA BOARD OF MARINE PILOTS 
MINUTES OF MEETINGS 
MAY 17, 2016 
PAGE 6 
 


 Captain Antonsen - Yes 
 Mr. Erickson - Yes 
 Mr. Mack - Yes 
 Mr. Rueter - Yes 
 Ms. Marquardt - Yes 
 Mr. Hladick -   Yes 
 
Motion passed 7 -0.  
 
12 AAC 56.960(d) 
Motion: Adopt proposed change to regulation 12 AAC 56.960(d):   
“ If a vessel piloted by a state licensed pilot is involved in a collision, allision, or 
grounding , the pilot shall, no later than 72 hours after returning ashore after the 
incident, file with the marine pilot coordinator an incident report as described in 
12 AAC 56.965. The marine pilot coordinator will, in the coordinator's discretion, 
investigate the reported incident.” 
 
Moved by: Captain Antonsen 
Second: Captain Arzt 
 
The Chair asked for discussion. Mr. Rueter suggested adding an amendment of 
the wording “if a vessel piloted by a state licensed pilot is involved in a collision, 
allision, grounding, or any navigational occurrence that results in personal injury, 
property damage, or environment damage the pilot shall, no later than 72 hours 
after returning ashore after the incident, file with the marine pilot coordinator an 
incident report as described in 12 AAC 56.965. The marine pilot coordinator will, 
in the coordinator's discretion, investigate the reported incident.” 


Mr. Erickson seconded the amendment. The Chair called for discussion.  


Mr. Rueter stated the Board currently has a regulation with the wording “meets 
with any casualty”, but back in the Fall meeting there was an inquiry by the Chair 
on what constituted a reportable incident. Even though there was some discussion, 
the Board never came to a complete understanding. Mr. Reuter stated the wording 
addresses what happens when a pilot comes onboard the bridge and finds an 
impaired crew member or master and if that should that be reported to the Board.  


Mr. Reuter stated he was concerned that there had been too many significant 
reportable occurrences that were never reported to the Board. He stated that any 
incident may not even apply to the navigation of the vessel, so the Board is going 
from one extreme to the other by eliminating the reporting requirement. He stated 
the Board is charged with the safety of the environment on behalf of the State, the 







ALASKA BOARD OF MARINE PILOTS 
MINUTES OF MEETINGS 
MAY 17, 2016 
PAGE 7 
 


pilots are the eyes and ears that are licensed to be watching for this and the Board 
would like to have a report of items of concern. He stated he thought it’s fitting to 
have the language added because it would not be overly burdensome to the pilots 
to report those types of incidents.  


Mr. Erickson stated that adding additional language that Mr. Rueter proposed puts 
the Board in line with what can be found in statutes and the statutory 
authorization for this section from AS 08.62.040, creating “proficient and 
competent pilotage service”. He stated adding the additional language would be in 
line with statute and “assures the safety of shipping”.  


Captain Antonsen stated that the “Protection of human life and property and of 
the marine environment” was in the context of an efficiently run pilot service, not 
in overlapping agencies. He stated that other agencies, such as the Coast Guard, 
maintain visibility and enforcement over those incidents and adding more 
language to this regulation would re-introduce ambiguity. He stated that it could 
create a catch-all for pilot conduct that the pilot didn’t directly contribute to.  


Captain Arzt stated that the example of intoxicated crew members and officers 
does not speak to the proposed regulation or amended regulation, and that there is 
more ambiguity and inconsistency if the regulation was amended. He stated that 
the Board was still defining what a reportable incident was, and that he was not in 
favor of this new wording because it opened up more uncertainty.  


The MPC stated she did not have enforcement authority over intoxicated crew 
members and would pass the information to the Coast Guard for enforcement. 
Captain Arzt stated that pilots did have reporting requirements under the Federal 
government.  


Mr. Rueter stated that a key item of concern was this regulation was part of the 
Pilotage Act, and wasn’t it incumbent on the Board to be aware of the issues that 
may come, whether or not the Board could enforce it? He said if there was an 
increasing amount of problems or a pilot was present and could make the Board 
aware of, it was not burdensome to make the Board aware of the report. Mr. 
Rueter asked about a grounding report for the M/V FENNICA that received great 
notoriety but was not brought before the Board because it was deemed a charting 
error. Captain Antonsen stated the Board did not discuss it; however the Board 
through the MPC and the Chair acted with the Incident Report to follow up on the 
issue. Captain Arzt stated that some issues may be reportable but not reportable in 
the mechanism the Board was discussing.  







ALASKA BOARD OF MARINE PILOTS 
MINUTES OF MEETINGS 
MAY 17, 2016 
PAGE 8 
 


The Chair asked Mr. Rueter what he wanted to have happen with the incident. Mr. 
Rueter stated he thought all issues were left to the MPC to determine if an 
Incident Report is suitable for further investigation. The Chair stated that was 
correct, however the MPC used the guidance of a reviewing board member. Mr. 
Rueter stated that, even though the issue was with the navigational chart, the 
vessel needed costly repairs in a drydock. Mr. Rueter stated he wasn’t sure if there 
was a further investigation or report from the MPC. The MPC asked if she could 
send out the investigation process chart to explain that when the MPC gets an 
Incident Report, it’s sent out to a Reviewing Board Member to see if there was a 
violation of statute and regulations. The MPC stated that, in this case, there was 
no violation of statute and regulations and the case was closed. It was confirmed 
that Captain Arzt was the reviewing board member for this case, and that this 
information could be discussed in open session after a case was closed. The MPC 
stated that cases would not be going before all Board members for deliberation 
because that was outside of the investigative process. Mr. Rueter stated that his 
purpose was not to seek a violation of a pilot’s license but there is a clear need for 
a report of an incident and the findings in result of the investigation. He stated the 
navigation charts were found at fault and determined there was no violation, but 
he would appreciate a report so the Board can improve their understanding. The 
Chair asked Mr. Rueter if he wanted a report. The Chair asked if the Coast Guard 
would have received a report, and the MPC said yes. She stated it would be public 
information via a FOIA or request by the MPC. Mr. Rueter stated the Board 
should be aware of incidents and activity, even if there is no enforcement power. 
Mr. Rueter stated the addition of the new language would require pilots to report 
incidents that do result in environmental and property damage while the vessel is 
under their command and it was not an excessive burden.  


Captain Antonsen stated that the noticed language and the intent from the 
beginning was to clear the ambiguity, and this proposed language would add 
ambiguity back, and failure to report information the pilot may not be aware of 
puts them at risk for fines and penalties for not reporting the information. He 
stated that pilots needed clarity on what was needed to report.  


Mr. Erickson stated the Board was tasked to define “meets with any casualty”, but 
the Board never solved the issue. He stated he proposed some language at the 
January meeting and it was never voted on. He stated Mr. Rueter’s proposed 
language limited the reportable incidents to something only occurring during 
navigation, and if a ship had to turn sharply to avoid an object and injuries 







ALASKA BOARD OF MARINE PILOTS 
MINUTES OF MEETINGS 
MAY 17, 2016 
PAGE 9 
 


someone, the Board could know. He stated he didn’t want the Board to loosen the 
reporting requirements.  


Captain Arzt stated that pilots have obligations to report oil pollution incidents to 
DEC since that’s where jurisdictional control on the State’s water lie. He stated 
there are mechanisms in place and the Board was far afield. The MPC re-read the 
amended regulation to confirm with Mr. Reuter that his vision was that reportable 
incidents were only related to navigation. Mr. Rueter said that was correct. Mr. 
Mack stated the MPC took the information to the RBM and there was a clear line 
if there was a state or federal law was violated, and if not, that was the end for the 
BOMP. The MPC stated his understanding was correct, and that the BOMP had 
statutes or regulations the incident pertained to. Mr. Mack stated there were clear 
examples, such as a marine pollution incident, and that it would be multiple 
agencies involved in the investigation. The MPC stated the BOMP would only be 
concerned with the pilot’s actions.  


The Chair requested a vote on the amended language: 


Motion: Adopt the amended language to the regulation:” If a vessel piloted by a 
state licensed pilot is involved in a collision, allision, grounding, or any 
navigational occurrence that results in personal injury, property damage, or 
environment damage the pilot shall, no later than 72 hours after returning ashore 
after the incident, file with the marine pilot coordinator an incident report as 
described in 12 AAC 56.965. The marine pilot coordinator will, in the 
coordinator's discretion, investigate the reported incident.” 


Moved by: Mr. Rueter 
Second: Mr. Erickson 
 


The Chair called for a roll-call vote: 
Captain Arzt - No 
Captain Antonsen -  No 
Mr. Erickson -  Yes 
Mr. Mack -  No 
Mr. Rueter -  Yes 
Ms. Marquardt -  No 
Mr. Hladick – No 


 
Motion failed 5 – 2. 
 
The Chair asked for vote on the original motion: 







ALASKA BOARD OF MARINE PILOTS 
MINUTES OF MEETINGS 
MAY 17, 2016 
PAGE 10 
 


Motion: Adopt proposed change to regulation 12 AAC 56.960(d):   
“ If a vessel piloted by a state licensed pilot is involved in a collision, allision, or 
grounding , the pilot shall, no later than 72 hours after returning ashore after the 
incident, file with the marine pilot coordinator an incident report as described in 
12 AAC 56.965. The marine pilot coordinator will, in the coordinator's discretion, 
investigate the reported incident.” 
 
Moved by: Captain Antonsen 
Second: Captain Arzt 


 
The Chair called for a roll-call vote: 
Captain Arzt– Yes 
Captain Antonsen – Yes 
Mr. Erickson – No 
Mr. Mack – Yes 
Mr. Rueter – No 
Ms. Marquardt – Yes 
Mr. Hladick – Yes 


 
Motion passed 5 – 2. 


 
The Chair stated the Board should have a discussion at the next meeting 
concerning Mr. Rueter’s concerns and educate the new members on the 
investigation process.  


Agenda Item 4 Approve the Navigation Packet 
 


The Chair asked for a motion to approve the navigation packet. Captain Antonsen 
stated he appreciated the chance to look over the packet. He stated the packet 
could change in the future and thanked the agents for their effort. He stated the 
Voluntary Waterway Guide was the 2014 edition. 


 
  Motion: Approve the 2016 Agent Navigation packet as presented. 
   


Moved by: Mr. Rueter 
  Second: Mr. Erickson.  
 


Captain Arzt– Yes 
Captain Antonsen – Yes 
Mr. Erickson – Yes 
Mr. Mack – Yes 
Mr. Rueter – Yes 
Ms. Marquardt – Yes 
Mr. Hladick – Yes 







ALASKA BOARD OF MARINE PILOTS 
MINUTES OF MEETINGS 
MAY 17, 2016 
PAGE 11 
 


 
  Motion carries 7-0 
 


Agenda Item 5 U.S. Coast Guard  Long Range Communication Study 
Mr. Rueter stated it was greatly appreciated the Coast Guard was using the MPC 
as a method of distribution and a minor point of order that, if the Board was 
instructing the pilot association and agents to participate, it should have been a 
statement from the Board and not the MPC. Captain Antonsen stated the SEAPA 
took the notification in the spirit it was offered, and it was not included in the 
pilot-master exchange in that it could be a distraction, and because there is no 
record of what pilot met with what master onboard what ship, it would be a better 
job for the agents. The MPC stated that the Coast Guard was researching Sea 
Areas 200NM offshore and the Arctic, and while it does not include pilotage 
waters, it will be pertinent 20 – 30 years from now. Mr. Mack stated he thought 
the spirit of the request was appropriate but it’s a better question for the pilot 
organizations and agents if they can do it safely and efficiently.  


 
Agenda Item 2 Oral Examination for Captain Maury 
 


On a motion by Captain Antonsen, seconded by Ms. Marquardt, and carried 
without dissent, the Board entered Executive Session at 11:15AM for the 
purposes of an oral examination for Captain Ian Maury.  
 


Agenda Item 3  Board Vote on the Licensure of Captain Maury 
 


Motion: Grant Captain Maury a Deputy Marine Pilot’s License for Region 2, 
exempting ice conditions in Nikiski and requiring a docking between October and 
April in Seward. 


 


 Moved by:   Captain Antonsen 
 Seconded by:   Mr. Reuter 
 
 The Chair asked for a roll-call vote.  


Captain Arzt– Yes 
Captain Antonsen – Yes 
Mr. Erickson – Yes 
Mr. Mack – Yes 
Mr. Rueter – Yes 
Ms. Marquardt – Yes 
Mr. Hladick – Yes 


 
Motion carries 7-0 
  


 







ALASKA BOARD OF MARINE PILOTS 
MINUTES OF MEETINGS 
MAY 17, 2016 
PAGE 12 
 


The Chair dismissed the Board at 11:40 AM. 
 


Respectfully submitted:     _______________________  


   Crystal Dooley 


   Marine Pilot Coordinator 


 


     ___________________________ 


     Chris Hladick 


     Chairman 








 


 


 
 


Department of Commerce, Community, 
and Economic Development 


 


BOARD OF MARINE PILOTS 


 
P.O. Box 110806 


Juneau, AK 99811-0806 


Main: 907.465.2548 


Fax: 907.465.2974 


DRAFT AGENDA 
TELECONFERENCE: JUNE 17, 2016 


 
TIME  TOPIC       LEAD PERSON 
 
1000  Call to Order – Roll Call  Acting Chair Marquardt 
 
1005  Review & Adopt Agenda     Acting Chair Marquardt 
  Declarations / Recusals 
  Adopt Consent Agenda 


 Adopt board annual report 


 Training update       
o Captain Maury 
o Regional reports 


 Foreign Pleasure Craft Exemption Update 
 
1010  Review/Approve Minutes:     Acting Chair Marquardt 


 April 12, 2016 
 May 17, 2016 


 
1015  Public Comment on Proposed Regulations:   Acting Chair Marquardt  
  12 AAC 56.990(a)(40)  
  Definition of Length Overall 
   
1045  Brief from Yacht Committee    Captain Preston/Mr. Axelson 
 Review minutes from May 9 Subcommittee 
 
1100                       Discussion Concerning Change to Regulation  Acting Chair Marquardt 
                              12 AAC 56.990(a)(40) Definition of Length Overall 
  
1130  Tonnage Upgrade       Captain Antonsen 
  Gary Palmer 
  25K GT to 65K GT approx. June 20 
 
1145   Investigations Update                                                                    Chief Investigator Birt 
  
1200  Other Business:  


Schedule next meeting:  October in ANC   Marine Pilot Coordinator  
       
1215  Adjourn                                                                                             Acting Chair Marquardt 










































































































		MAR-JU2015200979-Comments

		MAR-JU2015200979-Comments(from Supplemental Notice)






Register           ,                 2016 PROFESSIONAL REGULATIONS 


 
 


File#JU2015200979 1 


 Chapter 56.  Board of Marine Pilots.    


 


 


12 AAC 56.990(a) is amended by adding a new paragraph to read: 


. . .  


  (40)  "length overall" means the horizontal distance between the forward-


most and after-most points on the hull. 


(Eff. 6/11/71, Register 38; am 6/19/74, Register 50; am 5/12/78, Register 66; am 7/24/83, 


Register 87; am 12/26/86, Register 100; am 8/29/87, Register 103; am 7/26/90, Register 115; am 


5/13/92, Register 122; am 4/7/93, Register 126; am 10/2/93, Register 127; am 7/15/95, Register 


135; am 6/16/96, Register 138; am 6/17/96, Register 138; am 1/23/99, Register 149; am 3/21/99, 


Register 149; am 5/31/2000, Register 154; am 3/15/2002, Register 161; am 10/24/2002, Register 


164; am 5/26/2007, Register 182; am 1/29/2009, Register 189; am 11/4/2009, Register 192; am 


10/28/2010, Register 196; am ___/___/____, Register ____) 


Authority: AS 08.62.040  AS 08.62.160 


 


 


   


 








STATE OF ALASKA 
DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE, COMMUNITY, AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 


DIVISION OF CORPORATIONS, BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL LICENSING 
FOREIGN YACHT COMMITTEE 


 
SUMMARY OF MEETING 


May 09, 2016 
Teleconference originating at the State Office Building 


333 Willoughby Avenue 
9th Floor Conference Room C-West 


Juneau, Alaska 
 
This draft summary has been prepared by the staff of the Division of Corporations, 
Business and Professional Licensing.  They have not been reviewed or approved by the 
Committee. 
 
By the authority of AS 08.01.070(2), AS 08.62.030, and in compliance with the provisions of AS 
44.62, Article 6, a meeting of the Foreign Yacht Subcommittee was held on May 9, 2016 in 
Juneau, Alaska. 
 
 
 Call to Order/Roll Call 
 


The meeting was called to order at 2:30 PM by Co-Chairmen Captain Rich 
Preston and Mr. Axelson.  


 
 Participating members constituting a quorum were: 
 Paul Axelson   - Agent Member 


David Arzt   - Pilot Member 
Richard Erickson  - Agent Member 


 Mike Tibbles   - Public Member 
 
 Staff present:  


  Crystal Dooley  Marine Pilot Coordinator (MPC) 
  
 Members of the public present: 


  Ed Sinclair  Southeast Alaska Pilot Association 
 Shirley Marquardt Public Member 
  


Agenda Item 1 Review and Set Agenda 
 


 Hearing no objections to the set agenda, it was: 
 
  RESOLVED to approve the agenda. 


  







FOREIGN YACHT SUBCOMMITTEE  
SUMMARY OF MEETING 
MAY 9, 2016 
PAGE 2 of 2 
 


 
Agenda Item 2 Discussion of 12 AAC 56.990 (a)(40) Definition for Length Overall 


 
The Subcommittee determined that overall length and length overall were 
synonymous terms and could use the same definition. The Subcommittee agreed 
that naming all protruding objects such as bow-sprints and swim ladders would be 
cumbersome and recommended a diagram be included with regulations. The MPC 
stated she would research a diagram.  


 
The Subcommittee recommended that the changes to 12 AAC 56.990 Definitions 
be placed in alphabetical order, in which this definition would be inserted as 16 
and the below definitions would be re-numbered. 


 
  The Subcommittee recommended the following suggestions: 
 


12 AAC 56.115(a)(4) is amended to read: 
(4) Report the vessel’s length overall (LOA) to the Marine Pilot 
Coordinator using the definition in 12 AAC 56.990(a)(16); this length 
shall be used to determine exemption status and to calculate the fees set 
out in AS 08.62.140(b).  


 
12 AAC 56.115(a)(5) is amended to read: 
(5) Copy of the vessel’s registry 


 
12 AAC 56.990(a) is amended to read: 
(16) “Overall length” and Length Overall as used in AS 08.62.180 and 12 
AAC 56.115 means the horizontal distance of the hull between the 
forward-most part of the stem and the after-most part of the stern, 
excluding fittings and attachments. 


 
The Subcommittee shall present their findings to the Board of Marine Pilots at a 
teleconference scheduled for June 17, 2016.  


 


Respectfully submitted:     _______________________  


     Crystal Dooley 
     Marine Pilot Coordinator 
 
     ___________________________ 


     Captain Preston/ Mr. Axelson 
     Co-Chairmen 








Annual Report 
 


Fiscal Year 2016 
 


 


ALASKA STATE BOARD OF 
MARINE PILOTS 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
DIVISION OF CORPORATIONS, BUSINESS 


AND PROFESSIONAL LICENSING 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 


This annual performance report is presented in accordance with 
Alaska statute AS 08.01.010.   


 


Its purpose is to report the accomplishments, activities, and the 
past and present needs of the licensing program. 


 







 FY 2016 Annual Report — MAR Table of Contents 
 


 


ALASKA STATE BOARD OF MARINE PILOTS 
FY 2016 Annual Report 


Table of Contents 


 
 


Identification of the Board Page X 


Identification of the Staff Page X 


Narrative Statement Page X 


Budget Recommendations Page X 


Proposed Legislative Recommendations Page X 


Regulatory Recommendations Page X 


Goals and Objectives Page X 


Sunset Audit Recommendations Page X 


 







FY 2016 Annual Report — MAR Identification of Board 
 


 


ALASKA STATE BOARD OF MARINE PILOTS 
 FY 2016 Annual Report 


Identification of the Board 


 
Board Member Date Appointed Term Expires 


   
Chris Hladick, Chairman 
DCCED Commissioner AS 08.62.010 


Mar 20, 2015 Indefinite 


Hans H. Antonsen 
Pilot member 


Mar 22, 2013 Mar 01, 2017 


David Arzt 
Pilot member 


Mar 01, 2011 Mar 01, 2019 


Richard A. Erickson 
Agent member  


Mar 01, 2010 Mar 01, 2018 


Tom W. Rueter 
Agent member  


Apr 01, 2012 Mar 01, 2019 


Shirley R. Marquardt 
Public member  


Mar 01, 2015 Mar 01, 2018 


Andrew Mack 
Public member 


Mar 01, 2016 Mar 01, 2019 


 
 


Click here to enter a 
date. 


Click here to enter a 
date. 


   







FY 2016 Annual Report — MAR Identification of Staff 
 


 


ALASKA STATE BOARD OF MARINE PILOTS 
 FY 2016 Annual Report 


Identification of Staff 


  
Sara Chambers 
Acting Marine Pilot Coordinator/Division Operations Manager 
Department of Commerce, Community & Economic Development 
Division of Corporations, Business and Professional Licensing 
Post Office Box 110806 
Juneau, Alaska  99811-0806 
(907) 465-2144 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
   







FY 2016 Annual Report — MAR Narrative Statement Page 1 of 2 
 


 


ALASKA STATE BOARD OF MARINE PILOTS 
FY 2016 Annual Report 


Narrative Statement 


 
 
 
Board of Marine Pilots met eight times during the fiscal year. 
 


• February 25, 2015 by teleconference 
• March 17, 2015 by teleconference  
• July 24, 2015 by teleconference 
• October 27, 2015 in Anchorage, Alaska 
• January 28, 2016 in Anchorage, Alaska 
• April 12, 2016 in Juneau, Alaska 
• May 17, 2016 by teleconference 
• June 17, 2016 by teleconference  


   
 


Over the course of the year, the Board continued their work to establish, audit and enforce the 
standard as set in Alaska Statute 08.62 to: 
 


• Ensure that persons entering the practice meet rigorous standards of competency, and maintain 
such standards during their practice; 


• Assist the public in the knowledge of who is licensed; 
• Approve the standards by which pilot organizations are operated and trainees are selected; 
• Approve or disapprove rates for pilotage services; 
• Ensure that drug and alcohol testing is compliant; 
• Ensure that sufficient pilots are available to provide service; and  
• Vessels subject to pilotage have a licensed pilot while transiting compulsory waters. 


 
Throughout the year, the Board maintained their review of applications for pleasure craft of foreign 


registry seeking exemption from pilotage. For FY 16, XXX applications were received and issued an 
exemption for their pleasure craft between 65-ft and 175-ft in length, with XXX new exemption numbers 
issued to yachts visiting Alaska for the first time. The average LOA was XXX. A pleasure craft of foreign 
registry of more than 400 gross registered tons must also comply with Department of Environmental 
Conservation statutes regarding the proof of financial responsibility in the event of an oil spill. For FY15 XXX 
pleasure craft were issued exemptions once a Certificate of Financial Responsibility (COFR) was secured. XXX 
in application fees were generated. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
   







FY 2016 Annual Report — MAR Narrative Statement Page 2 of 2 
 


 
 
  


FY 2016 Narrative Statement   (continued) 


 
 


 Board Membership 
The Board is comprised of two public members, two pilot members, two vessel agents and the 
Commissioner or his designee (AS 08.62.010).  During FY16 one new public member seat was appointed by 
the Governor. 
 
Investigations 
In FY16 six investigations were opened.  Two remain open. (Double check this with Angela closer to the 
date) 
 
Public Information 
The Board website makes it possible to provide online access to meeting and exam schedules, agendas, 
Board minutes, meeting materials, and notices for proposed regulation.  Web based distribution helps the 
Board reduce costs and ensure accessibility for current and historical information and for ease of public 
access. The public may sign up to the Board’s ListServ to receive timely information from the Marine Pilot 
Coordinator.  
 
Drug and Alcohol Monitoring 
The Board continues to maintain their oversight of mandatory drug and alcohol testing by licensed Marine 
Pilots, Deputy Marine Pilots, trainees and apprentices.  As administered by the pilot associations, results are 
monitored by the Marine Pilot Coordinator.  The Board annually reviews this data to ensure compliance.  
 
Regulations 
The Board amended regulation 12 AAC 56.205 (b), 12 AAC 56.029(2), 12 AAC 56.990(a)(34), 12 
AAC56.960(d) and is in the process of amending 12 AAC 56.990(a)(40)  that’s if the Board decides to 
public notice that suggestion at the June 17 meeting.  The Board conducted a thirty day public comment 
period and received both written and oral comment on proposed regulation changes. The Foreign Yacht 
Committee was utilized for suggested on 12 AAC 12 AAC 56.990(a)(40). 
 
Rate Filings 
In FY16 the Board did not receive any proposals for their approval to change published tariffs for pilotage 
services.  
 
Working Groups 
The Foreign Yacht Committee is a sub-committee that meets at direction for the Board. During FY 15, the 
Yacht Committee met once to discuss a proposed regulation.   
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
   







FY 2016 Annual Report — MAR  Budget Recommendations Page 1 of 7 
 


 


  


FY 2016 Narrative Statement   (continued) 


 
 


  Pending Issues: 
The next Board of Marine Pilots meeting is tentatively scheduled for October 12, 2016, in Anchorage. The 
Board recognizes the current fiscal climate and is engaging in the use of teleconferences and using State of 
Alaska meeting space instead of renting private conference rooms.  
 
The Board of Marine Pilots will be hiring a staff member in FY17.  
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
   







FY 2016 Annual Report — MAR  Budget Recommendations Page 2 of 7 
 


 
 
  


 
 
 


Board Meeting Date Location # Board # Staff 


Oct 12, 2016 Anchorage, AK  7 1 
  Airfare:      $3,000.00 


 Hotel:      $1,600.00 
 Ground:      $300.00 
 Other:  Meals    $1,000.00 


Total Estimated Cost: $5,900.00 


 
 
 


Board Meeting Date Location # Board # Staff 


Jan 26, 2017 Anchorage, AK  7 1 
  Airfare:      $3,000.00 


 Hotel:      $1,600.00 
 Ground:      $300.00 
 Other:     Meals $1,000.00 


Total Estimated Cost: $5,900.00 


        Spring meeting           Juneau, AK  7    
  Airfare:      $2,600.00 


 Hotel:      $1,500.00 
 Ground:      $400.00 
 Other:  Meals    $600.00 


Total Estimated Cost: $5,100.00 


  







FY 2016 Annual Report — MAR  Budget Recommendations Page 3 of 7 
 


 


 


 
 


 
 


 
 


ALASKA STATE BOARD OF MARINE PILOTS 
 Fiscal Year 2016 Annual Report 


Budget Recommendations for FY 2017   (continued) 


 Travel Required to Perform Examinations 


   Not applicable 


Date Location # Board # Staff 
                                        


Description of meeting and its role in supporting the mission of the Board: 
 
 
  Airfare:     $0.00 


 Hotel:     $0.00 
 Ground:     $0.00 
 Conference:     $0.00 
 Other:     $0.00 


Total Estimated Cost: $0.00 
 


 Out-of-State Meetings and Additional In-State Travel 


   Not Applicable 


Date Location # Board # Staff 
            TBD       TBD    1 


Description of meeting and its role in supporting the mission of the Board: 
 CLEAR NCIT Basic and Advanced training for new MPC.  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 Airfare:   $0.00 
 Hotel:     $0.00 
 Ground:     $0.00 
 Conference:     $0.00 
 Other:     $0.00 
 Direct Third-Party Offset:     $0.00 
 Reimbursed Third-Party Offset:   $0.00 


    
Net Total Estimated Cost: $2,000.00 


 







FY 2016 Annual Report — MAR  Budget Recommendations Page 4 of 7 
 


 


 


 


 


ALASKA STATE BOARD OF MARINE PILOTS 
 Fiscal Year 2016 Annual Report 


Budget Recommendations for FY 2017   (continued) 


 Non-Travel Budget Requests 


  Not Applicable  Resources   Examinations 
 Membership  Training  Other 


 Product or Service Provider Cost Per Event 


    $0.00 


 
Description of item and its role in supporting the mission of the Board: 
  
  
  
 Other Items with a Fiscal Impact 


 Not Applicable 
 Product or Service Provider Cost Per Event 


    $0.00 


 
Description of item and its role in supporting the mission of the Board: 
  
  
  


Summary of FY 2017 Fiscal Requests  


  Board Meetings $8,500.00 


Travel for Exams $0.00 


Out-of-State and Additional In-State Travel $2,000.00 


Dues, Memberships, Resources, Training, Teleconferences $0.00 


Total Potential Third-Party Offsets $0.00 


Other:  $0.00 


Total Requested: $10,500.00 


  







FY 2016 Annual Report — MAR  Legislative Recommendations 
 
 


 


ALASKA STATE BOARD OF MARINE PILOTS 
 Fiscal Year 2016 Annual Report 


Recommendations for Proposed Legislation for FY 2017 


 


   No Recommendations 
The Board has no recommendations for proposed legislation at this time. 


   
Recommendations 
The Board has the following recommendations for proposed legislation: 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







FY 2016 Annual Report — MAR  Regulatory Recommendations 
 


 


ALASKA STATE BOARD OF MARINE PILOTS 
 Fiscal Year 2016 Annual Report 


Regulation Recommendations for FY 2017 


 


   No Recommendations 
The Board has no recommendations for proposed regulations at this time. 


   Recommendations 
The Board has the following recommendations for proposed regulations: 


Write something about the LOA regulation and where it’s at within the regulation process. Also, talk to 
Jun about the Kiska regulation. He may lump it with the LOA rgulation so there’s two regulations in one 
project.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







FY 2016 Annual Report — MAR  Goals and Objectives Page 1 of 2 
 


 


ALASKA STATE BOARD OF MARINE PILOTS 
 Fiscal Year 2016 Annual Report 


Goals and Objectives 


 
 
Part I 
 


FY 2016’s goals and objectives, and how they were met: 
 
The mission of the Alaska State Board of Marine Pilots’ is to provide efficient and competent pilotage 
service for the protection of shipping, the safety of human life and property, and the protection of the 
marine environment. The Board specifically focused on fair and equal access to experience necessary to 
obtain or upgrade a pilot’s license, equitable dispatch of pilots, and competency of marine pilots. The 
Board meets their goals through scheduled board meetings, teleconferences, and work groups.  All 
board meetings are open to the public.  Input from the public, licensees, pilot associations, registered 
agents, and industry on matters under the Board’s jurisdiction as defined by AS 08.62 is routine.  The 
Board’s unique makeup allows for thorough issue deliberations and judicious decisions on Board 
matters and to meet their goals and objectives. The Marine Pilot Coordinator assists the Board in 
completing goals, objectives, and daily program administration as per AS 08.62.050.  


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 







FY 2016 Annual Report — MAR  Goals and Objectives Page 2 of 2 
 


 


ALASKA STATE BOARD OF MARINE PILOTS 
 Fiscal Year 2016 Annual Report 


Goals and Objectives 


 
 
Part II 
 


FY 2017’s goals and objectives, and proposed methods to achieve them. 
Describe any stengths, weaknessness, opportunities, threats and required resources: 
 
The Board continues to fine-tune regulations, especially in support of the foreign pleasure-craft 
exemption program. The Board of Marine Pilot’s greatest strength is the balance between pilots, agents, 
and public members in that multiple vantage points and experience is brought to the Board table. The 
Board requests continued discussion about the allocation of resources from the Legislative level for 
travel budgets in that the Board strongly urges that face-to-face meetings are more effective than 
teleconferences.  
 
The Board’s staff member position (Marine Pilot Coordinator) is currently vacant and is expected to be 
filled in FY 17. The Board recommends the new Marine Pilot Coordinator attend CLEAR NCIT Basic 
Investigative training within their first six months of employment. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 







FY 2016 Annual Report — MAR  Goals and Objectives Page 3 of 2 
 


 
 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 


 


 
ALASKA STATE BOARD OF MARINE PILOTS 


 Fiscal Year 2016 Annual Report 


Sunset Audit Recommendations 


Date of Last Legislative Audit: 11/5/2012 
Board Sunset Date: 6/30/2019 


 Audit Recommendation:  The Marine Pilot Coordinator should improve administration of BMP 
operational activities. 


  
 
 


 
 


 Action Taken:  The Marine Pilot Coordinator (MPC) improves administration through program 
and statute/regulation familiarity and longevity, development and use of 
checklists, and persistence in obtaining licensing information.  
 
 


  


 
Next Steps:  Next Steps: Continual process and procedure review and making 


improvements when necessary.  
  
 
 


  


Date Completed:   





		Annual Report











Alaska Marine Pilots, LLC


Alaska State Quarterly Movement Report


2016 JAN - MAR (1st Qtr)


Region Three - Western Alaska


Pilot
Pilot


No.
Date


Total


Moves


Days


@ Sea
Port Place


Time


Aboard
Place


Time


Off
Vessel


Gross


Tons


Vessel


Type


IMO


No.


Job


No.


Bill Gillespie 202 10-Jan-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 0700 A/S T-1 Dock (AST1) 0810 Dunedin Star 8665 Reefer 9038945 203a-1


Bill Gillespie 202 11-Jan-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor A/S T-1 Dock (AST1) 1300 P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 1330 Dunedin Star 8665 Reefer 9038945 204a-1


Bill Gillespie 202 11-Jan-16 1 0 Captains Bay P/S - Captains Bay (PCB) 1330 Anchor Hog Island (AHI) 1445 Dunedin Star 8665 Reefer 9038945 205a-1


Bill Gillespie 202 15-Jan-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 0500 A/S UMC-City Dock (ASUMCD) 0640 Horizon Tacoma 20965 Container 8419154 206a-1


Bill Gillespie 202 15-Jan-16 1 0 Dutch Harbor P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 0800 A/S APL Dock (ASAPL) 0947 APL Philippines 64502 Container 9077276 207a-1


Bill Gillespie 202 15-Jan-16 1 0 Dutch Harbor A/S UMC-City Dock (ASUMCD) 1830 P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 1945 Horizon Tacoma 20965 Container 8419154 208a-1


Bill Gillespie 202 16-Jan-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor A/S APL Dock (ASAPL) 1842 P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 1930 APL Philippines 64502 Container 9077276 321a


Bill Gillespie 202 20-Jan-16 1 1 Captains Bay P/S - Captains Bay (PCB) 1330 Anchor Captains Bay (ACB) 0143 Dhara 6557 Reefer 8904941 209a-1


Bill Gillespie 202 21-Jan-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 2340 A/S UMC-City Dock (ASUMCD) 0030 Horizon Anchorage 20965 Container 8419142 322a


Bill Gillespie 202 22-Jan-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor A/S UMC-City Dock (ASUMCD) 0926 P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 1137 Horizon Anchorage 20965 Container 8419142 210a-1


Bill Gillespie 202 23-Jan-16 1 1 Captains Bay Anchor Captains Bay (ACB) 0100 P/S - Captains Bay (PCB) 0145 No 2 Pohah 4513 Reefer 9227601 211a-1


Bill Gillespie 202 23-Jan-16 1 2 Adak (IP & FP) P/S - Adak (PADK) 2230 Anchor Adak (AADK) 0030 No 2 Pohah 4513 Reefer 9227601 212a


Bill Gillespie 202 11-Feb-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor A/S T-1 Dock (AST1) 1300 Anchor Summer Bay (ASB) 1345 Dunedin Star 8665 Reefer 9038945 230a


Bill Gillespie 202 12-Feb-16 1 1 Captains Bay P/S - Captains Bay (PCB) 1400 Anchor Hog Island (AHI) 1600 Wellington Star 7944 Reefer 8917584 231a


Bill Gillespie 202 12-Feb-16 1 0 Captains Bay Anchor Captains Bay (ACB) 1745 P/S - Captains Bay (PCB) 1815 Dhara 6557 Reefer 8904941 232a


Bill Gillespie 202 12-Feb-16 1 0 Dutch Harbor P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 1945 A/S UMC-City Dock (ASUMCD) 2045 Horizon Anchorage 20965 Container 8419142 233a


Bill Gillespie 202 12-Feb-16 1 0 Captains Bay P/S - Captains Bay (PCB) 2145 Anchor Captains Bay (ACB) 2238 Suah 4444 Reefer 9000376 234a


Bill Gillespie 202 13-Feb-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor A/S APL Dock (ASAPL) 0630 P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 0730 APL Singapore 64502 Container 9074547 235a


18 13  


Pilot
Pilot


No.
Date


Total


Moves


Days


@ Sea
Port Place


Time


Aboard
Place


Time


Off
Vessel


Gross


Tons


Vessel


Type


IMO


No.


Job


No.


Carter Whalen 186 24-Feb-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor A/S UMC-City Dock (ASUMCD) 2130 P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 2230 Nicolai Maersk 27733 Container 9192454 294a


Carter Whalen 186 25-Feb-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 0930 1045 Ocean Phoenix 17845 Fishing 6413924 295a


Carter Whalen 186 25-Feb-16 1 0 Captains Bay A/S OSI South Dock (ASOSIS) 1930 P/S - Captains Bay (PCB) 2015 Mabah 4457 Reefer 9105358 296a


Carter Whalen 186 26-Feb-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 0955 A/S UMC-City Dock (ASUMCD) 1100 Horizon Kodiak 20965 Container 8419166 297a


Carter Whalen 186 27-Feb-16 1 1 Captains Bay P/S - Captains Bay (PCB) 0900 Anchor Captains Bay (ACB) 0950 Jacha 3264 Reefer 8512920 298a


Carter Whalen 186 27-Feb-16 1 0 Captains Bay P/S - Captains Bay (PCB) 1000 Anchor Captains Bay (ACB) 1100 Dinok 4392 Reefer 8908234 299a


Carter Whalen 186 27-Feb-16 1 0 Captains Bay P/S - Captains Bay (PCB) 1900 Anchor Hog Island (AHI) 2000 Autumn Wind 13077 Reefer 9038323 300a


Carter Whalen 186 28-Feb-16 1 1 Captains Bay Anchor Wide Bay (AWB) 1445 P/S - Captains Bay (PCB) 1545 Ocean Phoenix 17845 Fishing 6413924 396c


Carter Whalen 186 1-Mar-16 1 1 Captains Bay Anchor Hog Island (AHI) 1100 P/S - Captains Bay (PCB) 1130 Autumn Wind 13077 Reefer 9038323 301a


Carter Whalen 186 1-Mar-16 1 0 Dutch Harbor P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 1130 A/S T-1 Dock (AST1) 1235 Autumn Wind 13077 Reefer 9038323 302a


Carter Whalen 186 3-Mar-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 2300 A/S APL Dock (ASAPL) 0020 APL China 64502 Container 9074389 303a


Carter Whalen 186 4-Mar-16 1 1 Captains Bay Anchor Captains Bay (ACB) 2100 A/S OSI South Dock (ASOSIS) 2300 Suah 4444 Reefer 9000376 304a


Carter Whalen 186 6-Mar-16 1 1 Captains Bay Anchor Hog Island (AHI) 0200 P/S - Captains Bay (PCB) 0235 Chilean Reefer 7944 Reefer 8917546 305a


Carter Whalen 186 6-Mar-16 1 0 Dutch Harbor P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 0235 A/S T-1 Dock (AST1) 0400 Chilean Reefer 7944 Reefer 8917546 306a


Carter Whalen 186 8-Mar-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor A/S T-1 Dock (AST1) 1400 P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 1435 Chilean Reefer 7944 Reefer 8917546 20160408


Carter Whalen 186 9-Mar-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 0500 A/S UMC-City Dock (ASUMCD) 0600 O. M. Agarum 23633 Container 9339856 307a


Carter Whalen 186 10-Mar-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 2125 A/S APL Dock (ASAPL) 2245 APL Belgium 65792 Container 9218686 403c


2016 1st Qtr 1 of 5]







Carter Whalen 186 11-Mar-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor A/S UMC-City Dock (ASUMCD) 0800 P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 1100 O. M. Agarum 23633 Container 9339856 308a


Carter Whalen 186 13-Mar-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor A/S APL Dock (ASAPL) 0100 P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 0245 APL Belgium 65792 Container 9218686 309a


Carter Whalen 186 14-Mar-16 1 1 Captains Bay A/S OSI South Dock (ASOSIS) 0600 P/S - Captains Bay (PCB) 0700 Suah 4444 Reefer 9000376 310a


Carter Whalen 186 15-Mar-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 0500 A/S UMC-City Dock (ASUMCD) 0600 Maersk Jurong 27910 Container 9343089 311a


Carter Whalen 186 17-Mar-16 1 1 Captains Bay Anchor Broad Bay (ABB) 1500 P/S - Captains Bay (PCB) 1600 B W Hawk 29768 Tanker 9607198 312a


Carter Whalen 186 18-Mar-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 0330 A/S APL Dock (ASAPL) 0500 APL Korea 64502 Container 9074535 313a


Carter Whalen 186 19-Mar-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor A/S UMC-City Dock (ASUMCD) 0415 P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 0525 Horizon Kodiak 20965 Container 8419166 314a


Carter Whalen 186 19-Mar-16 1 0 Dutch Harbor A/S APL Dock (ASAPL) 2200 P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 2315 APL Korea 64502 Container 9074535 315a


Carter Whalen 186 20-Mar-16 1 1 Captains Bay A/S OSI South Dock (ASOSIS) 2015 Anchor Captains Bay (ACB) 2115 Dinok 4392 Reefer 8908234 316a


Carter Whalen 186 22-Mar-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 0500 A/S UMC-City Dock (ASUMCD) 0600 Nicolai Maersk 27733 Container 9192454 317a


Carter Whalen 186 22-Mar-16 1 0 Captains Bay Anchor Captains Bay (ACB) 1815 P/S - Captains Bay (PCB) 1915 Jochoh 4458 Reefer 9126261 318a


Carter Whalen 186 23-Mar-16 1 1 Adak (IP & FP) P/S - Adak (PADK) 2200 Anchor Adak (AADK) 2300 Jochoh 4458 Reefer 9126261 319a


Carter Whalen 186 24-Mar-16 1 1 Adak (IP & FP) Anchor Adak (AADK) 0900 P/S - Adak (PADK) 0930 No.2 Jochoh 4500 Reefer 9698343 320a


Carter Whalen 186 26-Mar-16 1 1 Captains Bay Anchor Captains Bay (ACB) 0900 A/S Crowley Dock (ASCD) 1000 Dinok 4392 Reefer 8908234 321a


Carter Whalen 186 26-Mar-16 1 0 Dutch Harbor A/S T-1 Dock (AST1) 1300 P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 1400 Wellington Star 7944 Reefer 8917584 322a


Carter Whalen 186 28-Mar-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 1130 Anchor Dutch Harbor (ADH) 1230 Swan chacabuco 13099 Reefer 8907876 325a


Carter Whalen 186 28-Mar-16 1 0 Dutch Harbor Anchor Dutch Harbor (ADH) 1300 P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 1400 Swan chacabuco 13099 Reefer 8907876 326a


Carter Whalen 186 28-Mar-16 1 0 Akutan (FP) P/S - Akutan (PA) 1700 A/S Trident Dock (ASTDA) 1815 Swan chacabuco 13099 Reefer 8907876 327a


Carter Whalen 186 31-Mar-16 1 1 Akutan (FP) A/S Trident Dock (ASTDA) 0400 P/S - Akutan (PA) 0545 Swan chacabuco 13099 Reefer 8907876 328a


Carter Whalen 186 31-Mar-16 1 0 Dutch Harbor P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 1000 A/S T-1 Dock (AST1) 1100 Swan chacabuco 13099 Reefer 8907876 329a


Carter Whalen 186 31-Mar-16 1 0 Captains Bay P/S - Captains Bay (PCB) 2200 Anchor Captains Bay (ACB) 2300 No. 1 Baron 4457 Reefer 8911619 330a


38 26


Pilot
Pilot


No.
Date


Total


Moves


Days


@ Sea
Port Place


Time


Aboard
Place


Time


Off
Vessel


Gross


Tons


Vessel


Type


IMO


No.


Job


No.


Clay Christy 190 15-Jan-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor A/S UMC-City Dock (ASUMCD) 1830 P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 1945 Horizon Tacoma 20965 Container 8419154 208a-1


Clay Christy 190 16-Jan-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor A/S APL Dock (ASAPL) 1842 P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 1930 APL Philippines 64502 Container 9077276 321a


Clay Christy 190 20-Jan-16 1 1 Captains Bay P/S - Captains Bay (PCB) 1330 Anchor Captains Bay (ACB) 0143 Dhara 6557 Reefer 8904941 209a-1


Clay Christy 190 21-Jan-16 1 2 Dutch Harbor P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 2340 A/S UMC-City Dock (ASUMCD) 0030 Horizon Anchorage 20965 Container 8419142 322a


Clay Christy 190 23-Jan-16 1 1 Captains Bay Anchor Captains Bay (ACB) 0100 P/S - Captains Bay (PCB) 0145 No 2 Pohah 4513 Reefer 9227601 211a-1


Clay Christy 190 24-Jan-16 1 1 Captains Bay P/S - Captains Bay (PCB) 0942 Anchor Captains Bay (ACB) 1018 Mabah 4457 Reefer 9105358 323a


Clay Christy 190 26-Jan-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 0648 A/S Medivac Area (---) 0700 BBC Vesuvius 8255 Freighter 9508471 324a


Clay Christy 190 26-Jan-16 1 0 Dutch Harbor A/S Medivac Area (---) 0700 P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 0706 BBC Vesuvius 8255 Freighter 9508471 325a


Clay Christy 190 27-Jan-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 1000 A/S UMC-City Dock (ASUMCD) 1100 Maersk DaNang 54675 Container 9348687 326a


Clay Christy 190 27-Jan-16 1 0 Captains Bay P/S - Captains Bay (PCB) 1206 Anchor Captains Bay (ACB) 1242 No 1 Pohah 4261 Reefer 8714944 327a


Clay Christy 190 28-Jan-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor A/S UMC-City Dock (ASUMCD) 1118 P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 1248 Maersk DaNang 54675 Container 9348687 328a


Clay Christy 190 28-Jan-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 2300 A/S APL Dock (ASAPL) 0048 APL Belgium 65792 Container 9218686 329a


Clay Christy 190 30-Jan-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 0100 A/S UMC-City Dock (ASUMCD) 0230 Horizon Consumer 256443 Container 7224306 330a


Clay Christy 190 30-Jan-16 1 0 Dutch Harbor P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 0400 A/S T-1 Dock (AST1) 0454 Chilean Reefer 7944 Reefer 8917546 331a


Clay Christy 190 30-Jan-16 1 0 Dutch Harbor A/S APL Dock (ASAPL) 0730 P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 0920 APL Belgium 65792 Container 9218686 332a


Clay Christy 190 30-Jan-16 1 0 Dutch Harbor A/S UMC-City Dock (ASUMCD) 1442 P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 1542 Horizon Consumer 256443 Container 7224306 333a


Clay Christy 190 1-Feb-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor A/S T-1 Dock (AST1) 1500 Anchor Summer Bay (ASB) 1536 Chilean Reefer 7944 Reefer 8917546 334a


Clay Christy 190 3-Feb-16 1 1 Captains Bay Anchor Captains Bay (ACB) 0700 A/S Crowley Dock (ASCD) 0800 Dhara 6557 Reefer 8904941 335a


Clay Christy 190 4-Feb-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 2300 A/S APL Dock (ASAPL) 0018 APL Korea 64502 Container 9074535 336a


Clay Christy 190 5-Feb-16 1 1 Captains Bay A/S Crowley Dock (ASCD) 0212 Anchor Captains Bay (ACB) 0300 Dhara 6557 Reefer 8904941 337a


Clay Christy 190 6-Feb-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor A/S T-1 Dock (AST1) 0136 P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 0218 Chilean Reefer 7944 Reefer 8917546 338a


Clay Christy 190 7-Feb-16 1 1 Captains Bay Anchor Captains Bay (ACB) 1130 A/S OSI South Dock (ASOSIS) 1200 Mabah 4457 Reefer 9105358 339a


2016 1st Qtr 2 of 5]







Clay Christy 190 8-Feb-16 1 1 Captains Bay A/S OSI South Dock (ASOSIS) 1400 Anchor Captains Bay (ACB) 1430 Mabah 4457 Reefer 9105358 340a


Clay Christy 190 10-Feb-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 0700 A/S UMC-City Dock (ASUMCD) 0800 O. M. Agarum 23633 Container 9339856 341a


Clay Christy 190 11-Feb-16 1 1 Adak (IP & FP) Anchor Adak (AADK) 1836 P/S - Adak (PADK) 1924 No 2 Pohah 4513 Reefer 9227601 342a


Clay Christy 190 12-Feb-16 1 1 Captains Bay P/S - Captains Bay (PCB) 2130 Anchor Captains Bay (ACB) 2230 No 2 Pohah 4513 Reefer 9227601 343a


Clay Christy 190 13-Feb-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor A/S UMC-City Dock (ASUMCD) 0915 P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 0945 Horizon Anchorage 20965 Container 8419142 344a


Clay Christy 190 14-Feb-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor Anchor Summer Bay (ASB) 0300 A/S T-1 Dock (AST1) 0530 Dunedin Star 8665 Reefer 9038945 345a


Clay Christy 190 14-Feb-16 1 0 Dutch Harbor A/S T-1 Dock (AST1) 2100 P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 2200 Dunedin Star 8665 Reefer 9038945 346a


Clay Christy 190 14-Feb-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor Anchor Summer Bay (ASB) 2224 A/S T-1 Dock (AST1) 0018 Autumn Wave 13077 Reefer 9038335 347a


30 25


Pilot
Pilot


No.
Date


Total


Moves


Days


@ Sea
Port Place


Time


Aboard
Place


Time


Off
Vessel


Gross


Tons


Vessel


Type


IMO


No.


Job


No.


David Arzt 189 1-Feb-16 1 1 Captains Bay P/S - Captains Bay (PCB) 1200 Anchor Captains Bay (ACB) 1235 Khana 3475 Reefer 8810645 343a


David Arzt 189 4-Feb-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor Anchor Summer Bay (ASB) 0600 A/S T-1 Dock (AST1) 0700 Chilean Reefer 7944 Reefer 8917546 344a


David Arzt 189 5-Feb-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 1400 A/S UMC-City Dock (ASUMCD) 1530 Horizon Kodiak 20965 Container 8419166 345a


David Arzt 189 6-Feb-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor A/S UMC-City Dock (ASUMCD) 0700 P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 0825 Horizon Kodiak 20965 Container 8419166 346a


David Arzt 189 6-Feb-16 1 0 Dutch Harbor A/S APL Dock (ASAPL) 0930 P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 1015 APL Korea 64502 Container 9074535 347a


David Arzt 189 7-Feb-16 1 1 Captains Bay P/S - Captains Bay (PCB) 1230 Anchor Broad Bay (ABB) 1330 B W Hawk 29768 Tanker 9607198 348a


David Arzt 189 10-Feb-16 1 1 Captains Bay P/S - Captains Bay (PCB) 1445 Anchor Hog Island (AHI) 1540 Autumn Wave 13077 Reefer 9038335 349a


David Arzt 189 10-Feb-16 1 0 Dutch Harbor A/S UMC-City Dock (ASUMCD) 1700 P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 1815 O. M. Agarum 23633 Container 9339856 350a


David Arzt 189 11-Feb-16 1 1 Captains Bay Anchor Hog Island (AHI) 1030 P/S - Captains Bay (PCB) 1110 Dunedin Star 8665 Reefer 9038945 351a


David Arzt 189 11-Feb-16 1 0 Dutch Harbor P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 2300 A/S APL Dock (ASAPL) 0045 APL Singapore 64502 Container 9074547 352a


David Arzt 189 11-Feb-16 1 0 Dutch Harbor P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 1100 A/S T-1 Dock (AST1) 1230 Dunedin Star 8665 Reefer 9038945 357a


David Arzt 189 12-Feb-16 1 1 Captains Bay Anchor Hog Island (AHI) 1000 P/S - Captains Bay (PCB) 1030 Autumn Wave 13077 Reefer 9038335 353a


David Arzt 189 12-Feb-16 1 0 Akutan (FP) P/S - Akutan (PA) 1300 A/S Trident Dock (ASTDA) 1400 Autumn Wave 13077 Reefer 9038335 354a


David Arzt 189 14-Feb-16 1 1 Akutan (FP) A/S Trident Dock (ASTDA) 0500 P/S - Akutan (PA) 0600 Autumn Wave 13077 Reefer 9038335 355a


David Arzt 189 14-Feb-16 1 0 Dutch Harbor P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 1100 A/S T-1 Dock (AST1) 1300 Autumn Wave 13077 Reefer 9038335 356a


David Arzt 189 16-Feb-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 0700 A/S UMC-City Dock (ASUMCD) 0810 Maersk Jurong 27910 Container 9343089 358a


David Arzt 189 16-Feb-16 1 0 Dutch Harbor A/S T-1 Dock (AST1) 1830 P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 1930 Autumn Wave 13077 Reefer 9038335 359a


David Arzt 189 19-Feb-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 1815 A/S UMC-City Dock (ASUMCD) 1945 Horizon Consumer 256443 Container 7224306 360a


David Arzt 189 20-Feb-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor A/S UMC-City Dock (ASUMCD) 0600 A/S UMC-City Dock (ASUMCD) 0715 Horizon Consumer 256443 Container 7224306 361a


David Arzt 189 20-Feb-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor A/S APL Dock (ASAPL) 2130 P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 0030 APL Thailand 64502 Container 9077123 362a


David Arzt 189 22-Feb-16 1 1 Captains Bay A/S Crowley Dock (ASCD) 0700 Anchor Captains Bay (ACB) 0735 Mabah 4457 Reefer 9105358 368a


David Arzt 189 23-Feb-16 1 1 Captains Bay P/S - Captains Bay (PCB) 1045 Anchor Captains Bay (ACB) 1130 Mononok 4392 Reefer 8911607 363a


David Arzt 189 24-Feb-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor A/S T-1 Dock (AST1) 0100 P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 0145 Wellington Star 7944 Reefer 8917584 364a


David Arzt 189 25-Feb-16 1 1 Adak (IP & FP) P/S - Adak (PADK) 0900 Anchor Adak (AADK) 1030 Wellington Star 7944 Reefer 8917584 365a


David Arzt 189 25-Feb-16 1 0 Adak (IP & FP) P/S - Adak (PADK) 1030 Anchor Adak (AADK) 1100 No.2 Jochoh 4500 Reefer 9698343 366a


David Arzt 189 27-Feb-16 1 1 Adak (IP & FP) Anchor Adak (AADK) 1930 P/S - Adak (PADK) 2015 Wellington Star 7944 Reefer 8917584 367a


26 18


Pilot
Pilot


No.
Date


Total


Moves


Days


@ Sea
Port Place


Time


Aboard
Place


Time


Off
Vessel


Gross


Tons


Vessel


Type


IMO


No.


Job


No.


James Boyer 208 4-Mar-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor A/S T-1 Dock (AST1) 1815 P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 1900 Autumn Wind 13077 Reefer 9038323 398c


James Boyer 208 5-Mar-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor A/S APL Dock (ASAPL) 1600 P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 1650 APL China 64502 Container 9074389 399c


James Boyer 208 6-Mar-16 1 1 Akutan (FP) P/S - Akutan (PA) 0900 A/S Trident Dock (ASTDA) 1000 Prince of Waves 7329 Reefer 9066485 400c


2016 1st Qtr 3 of 5]







James Boyer 208 8-Mar-16 1 1 Akutan (FP) A/S Trident Dock (ASTDA) 2045 P/S - Akutan (PA) 2130 Prince of Waves 7329 Reefer 9066485 401c


James Boyer 208 9-Mar-16 1 1 Captains Bay P/S - Captains Bay (PCB) 0001 Anchor Broad Bay (ABB) 0040 Prince of Waves 7329 Reefer 9066485 402c


James Boyer 208 11-Mar-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 1500 A/S UMC-City Dock (ASUMCD) 1615 Horizon Consumer 256443 Container 7224306 403c


James Boyer 208 12-Mar-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor A/S UMC-City Dock (ASUMCD) 1015 P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 1120 Horizon Consumer 256443 Container 7224306 404c


James Boyer 208 13-Mar-16 1 1 Captains Bay Anchor Captains Bay (ACB) 0815 A/S OSI South Dock (ASOSIS) 0930 Suah 4444 Reefer 9000376 405c


James Boyer 208 14-Mar-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor A/S UMC-City Dock (ASUMCD) 1400 P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 1450 O. M. Agarum 23633 Container 9339856 406c


James Boyer 208 15-Mar-16 1 1 Captains Bay P/S - Captains Bay (PCB) 1240 Anchor Captains Bay (ACB) 1320 Jochoh 4458 Reefer 9126261 407c


James Boyer 208 17-Mar-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 0800 A/S T-1 Dock (AST1) 0910 Dunedin Star 8665 Reefer 9038945 408c


James Boyer 208 17-Mar-16 1 0 Dutch Harbor A/S UMC-City Dock (ASUMCD) 1640 P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 1740 Maersk Jurong 27910 Container 9343089 409c


James Boyer 208 18-Mar-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 0750 A/S UMC-City Dock (ASUMCD) 0910 Horizon Kodiak 20965 Container 8419166 410c


James Boyer 208 19-Mar-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor A/S T-1 Dock (AST1) 1900 P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 2000 Dunedin Star 8665 Reefer 9038945 411c


James Boyer 208 20-Mar-16 1 1 Captains Bay Anchor Captains Bay (ACB) 0830 A/S OSI South Dock (ASOSIS) 0930 Dinok 4392 Reefer 8908234 412c


James Boyer 208 21-Mar-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 0930 Anchor Dutch Harbor (ADH) 1020 Ocean Phoenix 17845 Fishing 6413924 413c


James Boyer 208 21-Mar-16 1 0 Dutch Harbor Anchor Dutch Harbor (ADH) 1040 P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 1120 Ocean Phoenix 17845 Fishing 6413924 414c


James Boyer 208 24-Mar-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 1515 A/S T-1 Dock (AST1) 1600 Wellington Star 7944 Reefer 8917584 415c


James Boyer 208 24-Mar-16 1 0 Dutch Harbor A/S UMC-City Dock (ASUMCD) 1620 P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 1715 Nicolai Maersk 27733 Container 9192454 416c


James Boyer 208 24-Mar-16 1 0 Dutch Harbor P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 2300 A/S APL Dock (ASAPL) 0030 APL Singapore 64502 Container 9074547 417c


James Boyer 208 25-Mar-16 1 1 Captains Bay Anchor Captains Bay (ACB) 0100 P/S - Captains Bay (PCB) 0140 Mononok 4392 Reefer 8911607 418c


James Boyer 208 25-Mar-16 1 0 Dutch Harbor P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 1515 A/S UMC-City Dock (ASUMCD) 1600 Horizon Anchorage 20965 Container 8419142 419c


James Boyer 208 26-Mar-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor A/S UMC-City Dock (ASUMCD) 1015 P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 1100 Horizon Anchorage 20965 Container 8419142 420c


James Boyer 208 27-Mar-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor A/S APL Dock (ASAPL) 0100 P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 0150 APL Singapore 64502 Container 9074547 421c


James Boyer 208 28-Mar-16 1 1 Captains Bay A/S Crowley Dock (ASCD) 0205 Anchor Captains Bay (ACB) 0250 Dinok 4392 Reefer 8908234 422c


James Boyer 208 31-Mar-16 1 1 Captains Bay Anchor Captains Bay (ACB) 1400 P/S - Captains Bay (PCB) 1445 Dinok 4392 Reefer 8908234 423c


26 21


Pilot
Pilot


No.
Date


Total


Moves


Days


@ Sea
Port Place


Time


Aboard
Place


Time


Off
Vessel


Gross


Tons


Vessel


Type


IMO


No.


Job


No.


Rick Entenmann 176 17-Feb-16 1 1 Captains Bay Anchor Captains Bay (ACB) 0800 P/S - Captains Bay (PCB) 0835 No 2 Pohah 4513 Reefer 9227601 381c


Rick Entenmann 176 17-Feb-16 1 0 Captains Bay P/S - Captains Bay (PCB) 0850 Anchor Captains Bay (ACB) 0935 No.2 Jochoh 4500 Reefer 9698343 382c


Rick Entenmann 176 17-Feb-16 1 0 Dutch Harbor A/S UMC-City Dock (ASUMCD) 1740 P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 1825 Maersk Jurong 27910 Container 9343089 383c


Rick Entenmann 176 19-Feb-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 1400 A/S APL Dock (ASAPL) 1510 APL Thailand 64502 Container 9077123 384c


Rick Entenmann 176 20-Feb-16 1 1 Captains Bay Anchor Captains Bay (ACB) 0945 A/S Crowley Dock (ASCD) 1035 Mabah 4457 Reefer 9105358 385c


Rick Entenmann 176 20-Feb-16 1 0 Captains Bay Anchor Captains Bay (ACB) 1300 P/S - Captains Bay (PCB) 1340 No 1 Pohah 4261 Reefer 8714944 386c


Rick Entenmann 176 21-Feb-16 1 1 Captains Bay Anchor Hog Island (AHI) 1850 P/S - Captains Bay (PCB) 1940 Wellington Star 7944 Reefer 8917584 387c


Rick Entenmann 176 21-Feb-16 1 0 Dutch Harbor P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 1940 A/S T-1 Dock (AST1) 2100 Wellington Star 7944 Reefer 8917584 388c


Rick Entenmann 176 23-Feb-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 0755 A/S UMC-City Dock (ASUMCD) 0900 Nicolai Maersk 27733 Container 9192454 389c


Rick Entenmann 176 23-Feb-16 1 0 Captains Bay Anchor Captains Bay (ACB) 1835 P/S - Captains Bay (PCB) 1920 No.2 Jochoh 4500 Reefer 9698343 390c


Rick Entenmann 176 25-Feb-16 1 1 Captains Bay Anchor Captains Bay (ACB) 0730 A/S OSI South Dock (ASOSIS) 0800 Mabah 4457 Reefer 9105358 391c


Rick Entenmann 176 25-Feb-16 1 0 Captains Bay Anchor Captains Bay (ACB) 1015 A/S Vessel (ASVCB) 1230 Khana 3475 Reefer 8810645 392c


Rick Entenmann 176 26-Feb-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 0001 A/S APL Dock (ASAPL) 0145 APL Philippines 64502 Container 9077276 393c


Rick Entenmann 176 27-Feb-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor A/S UMC-City Dock (ASUMCD) 0655 P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 0750 Horizon Kodiak 20965 Container 8419166 394c


Rick Entenmann 176 27-Feb-16 1 0 Dutch Harbor A/S APL Dock (ASAPL) 1100 P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 1150 APL Philippines 64502 Container 9077276 402c


Rick Entenmann 176 28-Feb-16 1 1 Captains Bay A/S Vessel (ASVCB) 1345 P/S - Captains Bay (PCB) 1440 Khana 3475 Reefer 8810645 395c


Rick Entenmann 176 28-Feb-16 1 0 Captains Bay Anchor Wide Bay (AWB) 1445 P/S - Captains Bay (PCB) 1545 Ocean Phoenix 17845 Fishing 6413924 396c


Rick Entenmann 176 1-Mar-16 1 1 Captains Bay P/S - Captains Bay (PCB) 1600 Anchor Hog Island (AHI) 1740 Chilean Reefer 7944 Reefer 8917546 397c


Rick Entenmann 176 3-Mar-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 2300 A/S APL Dock (ASAPL) 0020 APL China 64502 Container 9074389 303a


Rick Entenmann 176 4-Mar-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 1025 A/S UMC-City Dock (ASUMCD) 1200 Horizon Anchorage 20965 Container 8419142 398c


2016 1st Qtr 4 of 5]







Rick Entenmann 176 5-Mar-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor A/S UMC-City Dock (ASUMCD) 0455 P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 0620 Horizon Anchorage 20965 Container 8419142 399c


Rick Entenmann 176 5-Mar-16 1 0 Captains Bay A/S OSI South Dock (ASOSIS) 0725 Anchor Captains Bay (ACB) 0810 Suah 4444 Reefer 9000376 0408c


Rick Entenmann 176 6-Mar-16 1 1 Captains Bay Anchor Captains Bay (ACB) 1335 A/S Crowley Dock (ASCD) 1425 Suah 4444 Reefer 9000376 400c


Rick Entenmann 176 8-Mar-16 1 1 Captains Bay A/S Crowley Dock (ASCD) 0925 Anchor Captains Bay (ACB) 1000 Suah 4444 Reefer 9000376 401c


Rick Entenmann 176 9-Mar-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 0500 A/S UMC-City Dock (ASUMCD) 0600 O. M. Agarum 23633 Container 9339856 307a


Rick Entenmann 176 10-Mar-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 2125 A/S APL Dock (ASAPL) 2245 APL Belgium 65792 Container 9218686 403c


Rick Entenmann 176 12-Mar-16 1 1 Captains Bay Anchor Broad Bay (ABB) 1000 P/S - Captains Bay (PCB) 1100 Prince of Waves 7329 Reefer 9066485 404c


Rick Entenmann 176 12-Mar-16 1 0 Dutch Harbor P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 1100 A/S T-1 Dock (AST1) 1200 Prince of Waves 7329 Reefer 9066485 405c


Rick Entenmann 176 13-Mar-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 1315 A/S UMC-City Dock (ASUMCD) 1530 O. M. Agarum 23633 Container 9339856 0408b


Rick Entenmann 176 14-Mar-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor A/S T-1 Dock (AST1) 1755 P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 2055 Prince of Waves 7329 Reefer 9066485 406c


Rick Entenmann 176 15-Mar-16 1 1 Dutch Harbor P/S - Dutch Harbor (PDH) 0500 A/S UMC-City Dock (ASUMCD) 0600 Maersk Jurong 27910 Container 9343089 311a


31 21


2016 1st Qtr 5 of 5]







